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NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the 19" Annual
General Mesting of Avon Organics Limited will be held
on Friday, 28" September, 2012 at 10.00 a.m. at Hote!
Daspalia, Road No. 37, Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad -
500033, Andhra Pradesh to transact the following
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1

)

To receive, consider, approve and adopt the Profit
and Loss Account for the financial year ended 31%
March, 2012 and the Audited Balance Sheet as at
that date together with the Reports of the Board of
Directors and the Auditors thereon.

To declare dividend on Equity Shares for the
financial year ended 31" March 2012

- Toappoint a Director in place of Mr. Ashit Shah, who

retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself
for re-appointment.

NOTES

Amember entitled to attend and vote at the meeting
is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote
instead of himself and such proxy need not be a
member of the company. Instrument of proxies in
order to be effective must be deposited at the
company's registered office not less than 48 hours
before the time fixed for the meeting.

As per the requirements of Section 154 of the
Companies Act, 1856, and for the purpose of
payment of Dividend, the Register of Members and
the Share Transfer Books of the Company wil
remain closed from Tuesday, 25" September, 2012
to Friday, 28" September, 2012 (both days
inclusive).

. Members are requested to produce the Attendance

Slip duly signed as per the specimen signature
recorded with the Company/Depository Participant
foradmission to the meeting hall.

. The dividend on Equity shares as recommended by

the directors for the year ended 31% March, 2012,
when declared at the meeting, wilt be pald:

To those members whose names shall appear in
the Register of Members of the Company, after
giving effect to all valid share transfers in physical
form lodged with the Company/RTA on or before
Monday, 24" September, 2012.

To those "Beneficial Owners" in respect of shares
held in electronic form, whose names shall appear
in the statements of beneficial ownership furnished
by National Securities Depository  Limited (NSDL)
and Central Depository Services (India) Limited
(CDSL), at the end of business hours on Monday,
24" September, 2012.

. For the purpose of payment of Dividend, the

members holding shares in electronic form are
hereby informed that bank particulars registerad
against their respective depository accounts will be

4,

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sudhir Ghate,
who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment.

To appoint Mfs. Mukesh Mehta & Associates,
Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditors of the
Company to hold office from the conclusion of this
Annual General Mesting of the Company on
remuneration to be decided by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

By Order of the Board

For Avon Organics Limited

Sd/-

Place: Mumbai Sunipa Ghosh
Date: 30" May, 2012 Company Secretary

10.

used by the Company. The Company or its
Registrars cannot act on any request received
directly from the Members holding shares in
electronic form for any change of bank particutars or
bank mandates. Such changes are to be advised
oniy to the Depository Participant of the Members.

in terms of Sections 205A and 205C of the
Companies Act, 1956, any dividend remaining
unpaid for a period of seven years from the due date
of payment is required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund. Members
who have not got their dividend warrants encashed,
are requested to write to the Registrars & Share
Transfer Agents for issuance of revalidated
Demand drafts or Duplicate Dividend warrants.

Members holding shares in physical form are
requested to inform any change, in their registered
address to the registered / corporate office of the
company or to X L Softech Systems Limited,
Registrar & Share Transfer Agents of the Company.
Members holding shares in electronic form are
requested to intimate immediately any change in
their address or bank mandates to their Depository
Participants with whom they are maintaining their
demat accounts.

Member/Proxies should bring in their attendance
slip sent herewith duly filled in for attending the
meeting.

A member desirous of receiving any information on
the accounts or operations of the Company is
requested to forward his/her queries to the
Company at least seven working days prior to the
meeting, so that the required information can be
made availabie at the meeting.

The shares of the Company are presently listed on
the Hyderabad, Mumbai and Calcutta Stock
Exchanges. However, the same is actively traded at
Bombay Stock Exchange.

19" Annual Report 2011-12
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their
Nineteenth Annual Report on the business and
operations of the Company and the Audited Financial
Accounts forthe yearended 31*March, 2012,

FINANCIAL RESULTS
Particulars 2011-12 2010-11
(Rs. In Lakhs} | (Rs. In Lakhs)
Sales & Operational
Income 16703.34 16212.07
Gross Profit /{{Loss)
before Interest,
Depreciation and
Tax {PBDIT} 4175.69 294563
Less. Depreciation 1086.09 611.64
Profit before Intergst
and Tax (PBIT) 3089.60 2333.99
Less. Interest &
Financial charges 1854.32 1347.93
Profit / {Loss)
before Tax (PBT) 1135.28 986.05
Less Provision for Taxation
: Provision for tax 222.00 200.00
Add: MAT credit (222.00) {200.00)
: Short provision for
Tax for earlier years 76.76 %
: Deffered Tax 51.97 .
Net Profit / (Loss) after
tax {PAT} 1006.55 986.05

Previous Year's figures have been regrouped/
reclassified wherever necessary fo conform to the
currentyear's classification.

DIVIDEND

The Directors are pleased to recommend payment of
Dividend @ 10% (Re. 1/- per Equity Share of the face
value of Rs. 10/- each), which, if approved by the
Members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
will involve an outflow of Rs. 225 Lakhs towards
Dividend and Rs.36.50 Lakhs as Dividend Distribution
Tax resulting in a total cutflow of Rs. 261.50 Lakhs.

YEARIN RETROSPECT

During the year under review, the Company has
achieved Net Sales and Operational income of Rs.
16703.34 Lakhs as against Rs. 16212.07 Lakhs in the
previous year, registering an increase in sales by
3.03%. During the year the Company has achieved a
Net profit of Rs. 1006.55 Lakhs as against Rs. 986.05
Lakhs, during the corresponding period in the previous
year.

The total sales of the Company includes export sales of
Rs. 5202.26 Lakhs during the year under review as
against 4223.65 Lakhs, during the previous year and
account for approximately 31.15% of the total sales in
the current year as against 26.05% in the previous
corresponding period.

QUALITY SYSTEMS

The Company being engaged in the pharmaceutical
sector strives o maitain higher quality standards and
complies with various regulations in relation to the
same. The manufacturing facility of the company
situated at Solapur, Maharashtra is a cGMP facility and
is USFDA inspected. The facility of the company
situated at Sadasivpeth is 1ISO 9001:2008 certified.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 217 (2AA) of the
Companies Act, 1956, the Directors confirm that:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the
year ended 31% March, 2012, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along
with proper explanation relating to material
departures;

Your Directors have selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the company as at 31* March, 2012
and of the Profit and Loss Account for the year
ended cn thatdate;

Your Directors have taken proper and sufficient
care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the Assets of the company and
preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities and

The accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2012
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

b}

d}

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company's essential character revolves around
values based on transparency, integrity,
professionalism and accountability. At the highest
level, the company continuously endeavours to
improve upon these aspects on an ongoing basis and
strives to achieve the higher standards of Corporate
Governance. The nature of compliances made in order
to meet the requirements and to promote transparency
and efficient governance, are more specifically detailed
in a separate report on Corporate Governance
attached herewith, which forms part of the Annual
Report. A certificate from Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company, inter alia, confirming the
correctness of the financial statements, compliance
with company's code of conduct, adequacy of internal

Avon Organics Limited
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

control measures and reporting of the matters to the
Audit Committee in terms of Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement entered into by the Company with Stock
Exchanges, is also enclosed as a part of this Annual
Report.

NOTE ON OPERATIONS OF THE SUBSIDIARY
COMPANY IN SINGAPORE

The Company's subsidiary company in Singapore,
M/s. Regal Pharma Pte, Ltd. is invalved in facilitating
marketing operations in the overseas market.

During the year under review, the company has infused
of Rs. 1076.40 Lakhs as capital in its subsidiary
company, Regal Pharma PTE Lid., Singapore by
subscribing to 31,20,000 Equity shares for Singapore
$1each,

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The Ministry of Corporate affairs vide its General
Circular no. 2/2011 dated 8" February, 2011 has
granted a general exemption from appending the
batance sheet of subsidiary companies to the annual
report of the parent company as per Section 212 (8) of
the Companies Act, 1956. As required under the
circular, the Board of Directors of the Company, has, at
its meeting held on 30" May, 2012, passed a resolution
issuing consent for not attaching the Balance Sheet of
Subsidiary company fo this Annual Report.
Accordingly, the Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account
and other documents of the subsidiary company are
not being appended to the Balance Sheet of the
Company.

The Company will arrange for the Annual Accounts of
the subsidiary company and other relevant information

| indetail, for any shareholder of the Company who may

be interested in obtaining the same. The Annual
Accounts of the Subsidiary company will also be made
available for inspection at the registered offices of both
the Company and the subsidiary company..

The consolidated financial statements as prepared in
accordance with the requirements of AS 21 and AS 23
issued by ICAI, and a statement pursuant Section 212
of the Companies Act, 1956 are appended to and are
forming part of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Board comprise of Chairman & Managing Director
and Non-Executive Directors with majority of the Board
comprising of Non-Executive Independent Directors_..

As per the requirements of Clayse 49 of Listing
Agreement, the Chairman & Managing Director, being
a Promoter Director of the parent Company, more than

fifty percent of the Board comprises of Independent
Directors, in compliance with the provisions of Clause
49 of the Listing Agreement.

Re-appointment of Mr. Sudhir Ghate,
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sudhir Ghate, Non-Executive Director retires by
rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

He is a commerce graduate by qualification and
possesses an extensive experience in various
commercial and industrial matters. He also owns and
manages a premier institution called "The Academy" at
Mangalore for over a decade. He Is presently a Director
in M/s. Magnum Intergrafiks Private Limited, M/s.
Mangalore Infotech Solutions Private Limited, M/s.
Trichur Heart Hospital Limited, M/s. VRL Logistics
Limited and M/s. Kanara Chamber of Commerce &
Industry.

Re-appointment of Mr. Ashit Shah,
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Ashit Shah, Non-Executive Director retires by
rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

He is a practicing Chartered Accountant and proprietor
of M/s. Ashit Shah & Co., Chartered Accountants. He
has rich experience in commercial matter & laws and
have effectively handled cases relating to Direct Tax,
Indirect Tax and Assurance Services. Me has aiso
authored many books on subjects related to his
profession. He is also a Director in M/s. Pears Financial
Services Pvt, Ltd.

Resignation of Mr. V. S. Soma, Executive Director &
Company Secretary

Mr. V. 8. Soma resigned as Executive Director &
Company Secretary of the Company with effect from
17" January, 2012 citing his other engagements.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

Section 217 (2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with
Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975 as
amended, requires Companies to list out names of the
employees drawing remuneration of more than Rs. 5
Lakhs per month andfor more than Rs. 60 Lakhs Per
annum,

We would like to state that, none of the employees of
the Company drew remuneration of Rs. 60 Lakhs or
above per annum andfor Rs. 5 Lakhs or above per
month during the year under review.

19" Annual Report 201112
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. Mukesh Mehta & Ca., Chartered Accountants,
Statutory Auditors of the Company, continues to hold
office untii conclusion of this Annual General Meeting
and have been recommended for re-appointment upto
the conclusion of next Annual General Meeting. In
terms of Clause 41{1)(h) of the Listing Agreement, the
Statutory Auditors of the Company are subjected to the
Peer Review Process of Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India {ICAI), and should hold a valid
certificate issued by Peer Review Board of the ICAL.
M/s. Mukesh Mehta & Co., Chartered Accountants hoid
a valid certificate issued by Peer Review Board of the
ICAI. '

COSTAUDITORS

In compliance with the directives issued by Central
Government from time to time and in terms of the
provisions of Section 233B of the Companies Act,
1956, M/s. D.Z.R. & Co., Cost Accountants were
appointed as Cost Auditors of the Company at the
meeting of the Board of Directors held on 30" May,
2012 for the manufacturing units of the Company
located at Solapur, Maharashtra and Sadasivpst,
Andhra Pradesh, respectively. A certificate of eligibility
has been received from M/s. D.Z.R. & Co., Cost
Accountants, to the effect that their appointment is in
accordance with the provisions of Section 224 (1) B of
the Companies Act, 1956.

Date: 30.05.2012
Place: Mumbai

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information relating to Energy Conservation,
Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Eamings and Outgo as required to be disclosed under
Section 217(1) (e) of the Companies Act, 1956 read
with the Companies {Disclosure of Particulars in the
Report of the Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 are set
out as an annexure forming part of this Report.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the company has neither
invited nor received any deposits from the public.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board of Directors take this opportunity to thank
the Financial Institutions, Banks, employees, business
associates, suppliers, Stock Exchanges, other
regulatory authorities and all the stake holders of the
Company for valuable sustained support and
cooperation in conducting efficient operations of the
Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Sdi/-
Ajit Kamath
Chairman & Managing Director

Avon Organics Limited
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ANNEXURE - 'A' TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

Information under Section 217(1) () of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Disclosure of
Particulars in the Report of the Board of Directors) Rules, 1988

A. Conservation of Energy :

a. Energy Conservation Measures taken : The Company is engaged in continuous
process of energy conservation through
improved operational and maintenance

practices.
b. Tota! energy consumption per unit of . Details are furnished in Form A
Production
B. Technology absorption : Details are furnished in Form B
(Rs. in Lakhs)
C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 2011-2012 2010-2011
1. Foreign Exchange Earnings (Rs. In Lakhs) 5202.26 4223.65
2. Foreign Exchange outgo (Rs. in Lakhs) 1250.04 1560.12
3. Net Foreign Exchange Earmnings (Rs. in Lakhs) 3952.22 2663.53
' FORM A
Form for disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation of energy.
2011-2012 2010-2011
A. POWER AND FUEL CONSUMPTION:
1. ELECTRICITY:

a. Purchased Units : 8816645 8527104
Amount (Rs. In Lakhs) 437.78 412.24
Rate/Unit (Rs.) 5.53 4.83

b. Own Generation :

Through D. G. Set Units 837074 948970

Amount (Rs. In Lakhs) 121.21 119.96

Rate/Unit {Rs.} 14.48 12.64

2. FURNACE & BOILER (Rs. In Lakhs) 570.86 708.72
B CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF PRODUCTION:

Electricity {Unit / MT) (Rs. in Lakhs) 204565 117536

Furnace & Boiler (Unit /MT) (Rs.) 191756.80 156519

19" Annual Report 2011-12 06




FORM B
A. RESEARCHAND DEVELOPMENT :
1. Specific areas in which R & Dwas carried out.
A) New product MAC (Methyl amino crotonate) has been developed and the quality has been found
to be of acceptable standards.
B) DEAA (Diethyl aceto acetamide) - Laboratory trials are completed and are ready to be implemented
in plant.
C) CEFDINIR intermediate - Laboratory trials are being conducted with the process still under
modifications.
2. Benefits derived from above R&D.

- Commercial production for MAC {(Methyl amino crotonate) has been started at the plant level & is
being supplied onwards for further use in PAD.(Phthaloyt Amlodipine)

3. Future plan of action.

i) To achieve maximum production of MAC (Methyl amino crotonate) by utilizing additional equipments
from DR3 - Production Block.

i) Toachieve the maximum production of PHEEMAby improving yields.

i) To carry outadditional experiments in Lab on Cefdinir intermediate in an effort to reduce production cost, .

4. ExpenditureonR&D:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

2011-12 2010-11
Revenue Expenditure 39.17 25.78
% to Turnover 0.23% 0.16%
B. TECHNOLOGYABSORPTION:
1.  Effortsin brief made towards . Consistent efforts made towards achieving the
technology absorption required quality of PHEEMA.
5. Benefits derived as a result of the above . Cost reduction in PHEEMA,

efforts, e.g. product improvement, cost
reduction, product development, import
substitution etc.

3. In case of imported technology ( import
during the last 5 years reckoned from
the beginning of the year), following
information may be furnished
a Technology imported Nil
b Year of import Not Applicable

¢ Has technology been fully absorbed Not Applicable

Avnn Nemanics | imited 07



Management Discussion and Analysis Report

GLOBALPHARMACEUTICAL MARKET

The global pharmaceutical market is changing
rapidly and growing more complex. Annual global
spending on medicines is expected to rise from
$856 billion in 2011 to nearly $1.2 trillion in 2016,
representing a compound annual growth rate of 3-6
per cent, as per the IMS Institute for Healthcare
Informatics' report, The Global Use of Medicines:
Qutiook through 2016.

This growth in annual global spending is mainly
driven by volume increases in the emerging markets
and an uptick in spending in developed nations.

Following several years of slowing growth, the
global market for medicines is poised to rebound
from an expected low point of 3-4 per cent growth in
2012 to 5-7 per cent in 2016, according to a new
forecast issued by the IMS Institute for Healthcare
Informatics.

Health systems in emerging markets will nearly
double their medicine spending in five years. The
increase will be driven by rising incomes, continued
low cost for drugs, and government-sponsored
programmes designed to increase access to
treatments - by limiting patients' exposure to costs
and encouraging greater use of medicines.
Generics and other products, including over-the-
counter medicines, diagnostics and non-
therapeutics, will account for approximately 83% of
suchincrease.

Global generic spending is expected to increase
from $242 billion in 2011 to $400-430 billion by 2016,
fuelled by volume growth in emerging markets and
the ongoing transition to generics in developed
nations.

Branded formulations could experience a dip
pursuant to a peak expiry of patents in 2012 and as
well as increased cost-containment actions by
payers. The impact of patent expiries primarily will
be felt in the US. In Europe, limited savings from
expiring patents are prompting policy shifts to
encourage greater use of generics and lower
reimbursement for these products.

INDIAN PHARMACEUTICAL MARKET

The recent spate of turbulence experienced in the
Indian market has resulted in high inflation levels,
volatile industrial output and escalated interest rates
and have collectively caused a downward revision
in the GDP growth rates from 8% t0 6.9%.

Even though, the outlook for the pharmaceuticals
sector in the country remains positive, the Indian
Pharmaceuticals market valued at around US $
12.3 billien (IMS March MAT 2012) is a highly
fragmented market with a large number of players
spread across therapy segments.

Regarded as one of the fastest-growing pharma
market globally, primarily driven by a large
population, evolving patient demographics,
increasing health care expenditure, growing
urbanisation, rising life expectancy, and active
private-sector paricipation, Indian companies are
today regarded as collaborators demonstrating
capabilities that match global expectations.

India ranks third in terms of manufacturing pharma
products by volume. India's Pharmaceutical
industry is gaining its position as a global leader
clearly topping the charts among the Indian science
based indusiries with significant expertise in the
complex field of drug manufacture and technology.
India's pharmaceutical market has registered a
strong growth of 16%in 2012.

The Indian pharmaceuticals sector is poised to
reach US$ 55 billion by 2020, from US$ 12.6 billion
in 2009 (Source: Mckinsey, India Pharma 2020:
Propelling access and acceptance realising true
potential, 2010).India tops in exporting generic
medicines. The Indian pharma industry produces
around 20% to 24% of the global generic drugs.
Around 40% of the total pharmaceutical produce is
exported (55% formulation and 45% APIs). The
Indian pharmaceutical market is expected to
witness rapid and significant growth on the back of
greater acceptance and penetration of generics,
enhanced export opportunities, increasing global
demand, and a large share of off-patent drugs in the
future.

Qutlook

India's pharmaceutical industry is at an
advantageous position compared to other emerging
countries. With the advantage of being a highly
organised sector, the Indian pharmaceutical
companies are growing at the rate of 8-9% annualiy.

Risks and Concerns

Some of the keys risks and concerns that are faced
by the Company are as follows:

Some of the obvious and identifiable risks include
the following:

19" Annual Report 201112
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High level of inflation implying an increase on
costs of various inputs / services which may not
be passed entirely and may have a negative
impact on the margins of the Company;

High volatility in the world currency markets
Competition from other Indian Companies
operating in similar segments.

The fall in the GDP growth rates indicating a
macro level slowdown in the economy alongwith
tightened liquidity and rising interest costs.

Other key risks related to our business include
loss of key personnel, increased labour costs
and uncertainties in terms of regulatory changes.

Finance

Operational &Financial Performance

Sales& Operating Income: During the year
under review, Net Sales and QOperational income
stood at Rs. 16703.34 Lakhs as against Rs.
16212.07 Lakhs in the previous year, registering
anincrease in sales by 3.03%.

Gross Margin (EBITDA): During the year under
review, the gross margin stood at Rs. 4175.69
Lakhs (25%) as against Rs. 294563 Lakhs
(18.17%) in the previous year, which was
primarily due to process improvisation and
increase in operational efficiency which led to
increases in EBITDA margins.

Net Profit: During the year under review the
Company has made a Net profit of Rs. 1006.55
Lakhs as against Rs. 986.05 Lakhs, thereby
registering an increase in profits by 2.08%

Net-worth: The networth of the Company
increased to Rs. 6886.92 Lakhs from Rs.
6141.87 Lakhs during the previous year. The
increase has been primarily on account of
retaining of profits earned by the company during
the year after providing for dividend payment and
Tax thereon.

Investment in Subsidiary : During the year
under review, the company has infused a capital
of Rs. 1076.40 Lakhs in its subsidiary company,
Regal Pharma PTE Ltd., Singapore by
subscribing to 31,20,000 Equity shares for
Singapore $1 each.

Fixed Assets: During the year under review, the
Company has incurred an amount of Rs. 1445.88
Lakhs towards capital expenditure and Capital
Work-in progress.

Internal Control Systems

The Company has adequate internal control
systems commensurate with the size and the nature
of business of the Company.

The internal control system is constantly assessed
and strengthened with tighter conirol procedures.
The Intemal Control Systems ensure efficiency of
operations, compliance with internal policies and
applicable laws and regulations, protection of
resources and assets, and accurate reporting of
financial transactions.

The Company has a robust internal audit system
which ensures a hand-in-hand working of the
auditors with the company representatives with a
view not only to test the adherence of the laid down
procedures but also to suggest improvements in
processes and systems. The internal audit system is
approved by the audit committee who monitor the
implementation of various recommendations based
on observations of the auditors, as reported to the
audit committee.

Human Resource Deveiocpment and Industrial
Relations

As of 317 March, 2012, the employee strength of the
Company stands at 484 .

The Company continues to focus on its core values
of knowledge, action and care, which are also
reflected in the behavior of the employees. There
has been no other material development in the
Company, as far Human Resources are concerned.

The Board wishes to place on record its
appreciation for the dedication and commitment of
your Company's employses at all levels, which has
continued to be our major strength.

Caveat

The statements forming part of the Management
Discussion and Analysis Report may contain certain
forward looking statements within the meaning of
applicable securities laws and regulations. Many
factors could cause the actual results,
performances or achievements of the Company fo
be materiafly different from any future results,
performances and achievements that may be
expressed or implied by such forward looking
statements.

Avon Organics Limited




REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Avon's philosophy on corporate governance envisages working towards high levels of fransparency and
ethical business conduct by employees across all tevels in the Company, The Company is committed to
achieve and maintain higher standard of Corporate Governance on a sustained basis. Our Corporate
Governance processes are directed at ensuring that Company's actions, assets and agents are directed to
maximize long term shareholder value. )

This report sets out some of the insights of Company's policies and practices relating to Corporate
Governance.

1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY

* Tostrive towards high growth path in terms of profits and revenues.,

= To endeavour to exercise in all integrity, the fiduciary responsibilities towards all stakeholders in
the company

* Toensure thatthat the Company achieves its ambitions in prudent and sustainable manner

* Tomaintain integrity in business transactions and a ban on exerting any kind of improperinfiuence;

* Toensure fair and respectful working conditions across all levels.

2. BOARD OFCIRECTORS

a. Composition ofthe Board
As on 31* March, 2012, & majority of the Board comprises of Non-Executive, independent Directors,
The composition of the Board is in line with the principles of Corporate Governance, as envisaged by
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, with an optimum combination of Non-Executive, Independent
Directors on the Board.

The composition of the Board as on 31 March, 2012 was as follows:

81, No. Names of Directors f Designations
1. Mr. Ajit Kamath Non-Executive Chairman & Managing Director
2. Mr. Manoj Jain Director
3 Mr. Upkar Singh Kohli Non-Executive Director, Independent
. 4, Mr. Sudhir Ghate Non-Executive Director, Independent
5. Mr. Ashit Shah Non-Executive Director, Independent

Note: Mr. V. S. Soma resigned from the Board as Executive Director and Company Secretary & Compliance
Officer with effect from 17" January, 2012.

In compliance with the provisions of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, since the Non-Executive Chairman
of the Company is & Promoter Director of the holding Company (Arch Pharmalabs Limited), mare than fifty
percent ofthe Board is required to comprise of Independent Directors.

Further, in adherence to the requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, a declaration confirming
their independent status with reference to the Company, is furnished by every Director at the time of their
appointment as well as on an annual ongoing basis.

The Board has constituted an Audit Committee, Shareholders and Investors Grievances Committee,
Remuneration Committee and a Finance Committee,

The attendance of the Board of Directors at the Board Meetings, Annuat General Meeting and the details of
other directorships and Chairmanships/ committee memberships held by them are furnished below
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No.of Board | - No.of | - Ne.of ' | Attendance

g v iR o gt L s - Meetings - | Directorships| Memberships ; at the fast
attended out | . of other | of Board Sub~ | AGM held
- uofdheld | Companles | Committess f on 28" July
e b | chairmanships | 3011
i ‘mother. [0 o o
- Companies
Mr. Ajit Kamath Non Executive- Promoter 4 19 1 Yes
Mr. Manoj Jain Non Executive — Promoter 4 1&1= 1 Yes
Mr. V. 8. Soma* Company Secretary & Whole- 3 Nil Nil Yes
time Director
Mr. Upkar Singh Kohli | Non- Executive - Independent 4 10 1 No
Mr. Sudhir Ghate Non- Executive - Independent 4 5 5 Yes
Chairman of
Audit Committee
in 2 companies
Mr. Ashit Shah Non- Executive - Independent 3 1 Nif No

*Resigned with effect from 17.01.2012
b. Board Meetings and Procedure

The tentative annual calendar of the Meetings of the Board of Directors is agreed upon at the beginning
of the year. The Board of Directors meets at least 4 times in a year, in order to evaluate the management
policies, review compliance reports, appraise the financial matters and grant strategic direction to the
Company so that long term interests of the stakeholders are served.

The meetings are governed by the detailed agenda. All issues included in the agenda are backed up by
comprehensive background information to enable the Board to take informed decisions. The agenda
papers, containing detailed notes on various agenda items and other information which would enable
the Board to discharge its responsibility effectively, are circulated in advance to the Members of the
Board. The Managing Director briefs the Board on the overall performance of the Company. The
Chairman of the Audit Committee briefs the Board on important matters discussed at the Meetings of the
Audit Committee. The statements of shareholders’/ investors' Grievances received and resolved are
also placed before the Board.

The Board of Directors of the Company met 4 times during the financial year 2011-12 on the
[ following dates;

19" May, 2011, 29" July, 2011, 14" November, 2011 and 13" February, 2012

¢. CodeofConduct
As per the requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Company has adopted a Code of
Conduct for Directors as well as for senior management of the Company. All the Directors and senior
management personnel have affirmed compliance with code of conduct.
Code of conduct is formulated taking into account Confidentiality of Interest, Protection of Assets,
Honesty & Integrity, Gifts & Donations, Prevention of Insider Trading, and Compiiance of various
applicable laws.

3. BOARDCOMMITTEES:

In compliance with the appiicable rules and regulations and for effective functioning of the Board at
operational tevels in the Company, the following Committees of the Board have been formed.

Avon Oraanics Limited 14
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A. AUDIT COMMITTEE

{(a) Briefdescription of terms of reference

1)} Evaluation and monitoring of the Company's financial reporting process and disclosure of its
financial information in a bid to ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient
and credible.

2) Reviewing with the management the annual financial statements before submission to the Board,
internal and external auditors and the adeguacy of the internal control systems, with particular
reference to:

+ Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
the management;

- Significant adjustments made in the financial statement arising ocut audit findings;

«+ Disclosure of related party transactions;

= Changes if any, in the accounting policies;

« Qualifications in draft audit report;

+ Compliance with listing agreement requirements and other regulatory requirements;

3) Discussing with the Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors and Internal Auditors about the scope and
coverage of audit in the Company and ascertaining areas of concern, if any.

4) Reviewing with the Management, quarterly and half-yearly financial reports, before submission to
the Board.

5) Reviewing the internal audit mechanism existing in the Company and putting forward relevant
suggestions for betterment of the internal audit process.

8) Making recommendations in relation to the appointment, reappoiniment and removal of the
external auditor and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor
including fixing of audit fees.

7) Investigating into any matter in relation to the items specified in Section 292A of the Companies
Act, 1956 or referred o it by the Board and for this purpose, shall have full access to information
contained in the records of the Company and external professional advice, ifany.

8) Reviewing the Company's financial and risk management policies and compliance with internal
control systems.

(b} Composition, Names of Members and Chairman
The composition of the Audit Committee is in line with the requirements of Section 292A of the
Companies Act, 1956 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

All Members of Audit Committee are equipped with a thorough understanding of the financial
matters and issues related thereto.
As per the requirements of Clause 49, audit committee should comprise of minimum 3 members
with minimum two/third of the Committee being independent with an Independent Chairman. As on
31* March, 2012, the constitution of Audit Committee and attendance thereat was as follows:

MName of the Member Paosition No. of meetings attended

Mr. Sudhir Ghate

[Non-Executive and Independent] Chairman 4

Mr. Ashit Shah

[Non-Executive and Independent] Member 3

Mr. Manoj Jain

[Non-Executive] . Member 4

19" Annual Report 201112 12
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B. REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

(a)

Mr. V. S. Soma, Executive Director and Company Secretary acted as Secretary to the Audit
Committee for the meetings held on 19"May, 2011, 29" July, 2011and 14" November, 2011.

In view of his resignation, Ms. Sunipa Ghosh has been appointed as a Company Secretary with
effectfrom 17" January, 2012 who  also acts as Secretary to the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee meeting held on 13th February, 2012 was attended by Ms. Sunipa Ghosh as
a Secretary to the Audit Committee.

The Committee met 4 times during the year under review on

19" May, 2011; 29" July, 2011; 14" November, 2011 & 13" February, 2012

Brief description of terms of reference

The Remuneration Committee has been constituted to recommend / review remuneration/
commission/ incentives payable to the Managing Director / Whole-time Directors of the Company,
based on their performance and defined assessment criteria.

The Remuneration policy is in consonance with the existing industry practice.

{b) Composition, Names of Members and Chairman
The constitution of the Remuneration Committee was as under:
Name of the Member ge Position
Mr. Sudhir Ghate [Non-Executive, Independent] Chairman
Mr. Upkar Singh Kohli [Non-Executive, Independent] Member
Mr. Ashit Shah [Non-Executive, Independent] Member

The commitiee currently comprises of three members, all of them being Non-Executive
Independent Directors. The constitution of the Committee complies with the requirements of
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

Presently, the Non-Executive Directors do not receive any remuneration/commission and are paid
sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board and Committee. The Non-Executive Chairman
and Managing Director do not draw any remuneration from the Company. Remuneration payable
to the Whole-time Director for part of the year under review, was governed by the agreement
executed between him and the Company and as approved by the shareholders.

No sitting fee is paid to Mr. Manoj Jain, Non-Executive Director for attending the Board/Committee
meetings, as he is the Promoter Director of Arch Pharmalabs Limited, the parent company of Avon
Organics Limited.

There were no other pecuniary refationships or transactions between the Non-Executive Directors
and the Company.

The details of remuneration paid to the Whole-time Director for part of the financial year 2011-12
are given below:

Avon Organics Limited 13
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Mr. V. 8. Soma* 9,96,815

*Resigned with effect from 17.01.2012
Note: Directors remuneration is in accordance with Schedule Xill of the Companies Act, 1956.
C. SHAREHOLDERS'/INVESTOR GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE MEETING
(a) Briefdescription of terms of reference

The Company has constituted ShareholdersYInvestor Grisvance Committee to work in tandem
with the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent and oversees the redressal of grievances of
the shareholders of the Company. The Committee also reviews the performance of the Registrar
and Share Transfer Agents and suggests measures for overall improvement in the quality of
investor services.

The Committee is responsible for redressal of all shareholder related matters such as:

* Issuing duplicate share certificates

» Dematerialisation of shares

* Resolving Shareholders' grievances

* Non- receipt of declared Dividend

* Change in shareholders' addresses

= Non-receipt of Annual Reporis

= Timely disclosures for shareholders and investors

(b) Composition, Names of Members and Chairperson

The Committee functions under the Chairmanship of Mr. Ashit Shah, Non-Executlve, Independent
Director of the Company, in compliance with Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement

The Committes comprised of the following members:

Name of the Member _ o ~ Position
Mr. Ashit Shah [Non-Executive and independent] Chalrman
Mr. Upkar Singh Kohli [Non-Executive and Independent] Membar

The Committee met 4 times during the year under review on
19" May, 2014; 29" July, 2011; 14" November, 2011 & 13" February, 2012
{c) Mame and designation of Compliance Officer

Ms. Sunipa Ghosh, Company Secretary of the Company is the Compliance Officer of the
Company, responsible for supervising the working of the Shareholders' / Investor Grievance
Committee Meeting and monitoring the investor and shareholders grisvance redressal mechanism
and for reporting the same to the Company's Board at each meeting. She is further responsible for
directly fiaisoning with the authorities such as Securities Exchange Board of India [SEBI], stock
exchanges, Registrar of Companies, etc. and investors with respsct to implementation of various
clauses, rules, regulations and other directives of such authorities and investor service and
complaints of related matters.

|
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Name ofthe Compliance officer Ms. Sunipa Ghosh
Designation Company Secretary

Contact Details:

Address C/o. Avon Organics Limited
Survey No.18, Yawapur,
Sadasivpet (M), Medak Dist.,
Andhra Pradesh - 502291.

TelNo 08455 399914
FaxNo 08455 399 999
E-mail cs_1@avonarganicsitd.com

Details af number of requests / complaints received and resolved are as under:

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Nature of.Cmespm&ence l Received | Replied/Resoived ;Pending
1. Non receipt of dividend 2 2 NIL
2. Non-receipt of share certificates sent for transfer etc. NIL NIL NIL
3. Non-receipt of Annual Reports, right forms, bonus

sharesfinterest on delayed receipt of refund order NIL NIL NIL
TOTAL 2 2 Nil

No investor complaints remained unattended / pending for more than 30 days and no request for share
transfers or dematerialization received during the financial year was pending for more than 30 days and
15 days, respectively.

SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM:

Share transfers are processed and share certificates duly endorsed are returned within a pericd of
15 days from the date of receipt, subject to the documents being valid and complete in alt respects.

The authority for approving transfer, transmission, etc. of the equity shares of the Company has been
delegated to the Company's Registrar & Share Transfer Agents [RTA] namely, M/s. X L Softech
Systems Limited under the supervision and control of the Company Secretary, Ms. Sunipa Ghosh,
Company Secretary of the Company, who is also the Compliance Officer of the Company.

A summary of transfer / transmission of the equity shares, so approved by the Company Secretary is
placed at every Board Meeting / Shareholders'/ Investors' Grievance Commitiee.

There were no share transfers pending as at the end of the financial year.
Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit

An independent Practicing Company Secretary carries out the Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit as
mandated by SEBI, and reports on the reconciliation of total issued and listed Capital with that of total
share capital admitted / held in dematerialized form with National Securities Depository Limited [NSDL]
and Central Depository Services Limited [CDSL] and those held in physical form. This audit is carried
out on quarterly basis and the report thereof is placed before the Shareholders and Investors'
Grievances Committee of the Board and is submitted to the Stock Exchanges, where the Company's
equity shares are listed.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

A. Details oflast three Annual General Meetings held are as follows:
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‘ | Year | Day, Date and Time of the Meeting . |Venue ~ - | Detaiis of Speciat =
LE5 Sau il ada 1 150 gl oaseet o A R - Resolutions passed . =
| 2011 | Friday, 29" July, 2011, 11.30 a.m. Registered Office| NIL

2010 | Saturday, 25" September, 2010, 11.30 a.m. Registered Office| NiIL

2009 | Tuesday, 29" September, 2008, 3.00 p.m. Registered Office | Three special resolutions
were passed to alter the
Articles of Association for
amending the following
provisions in the articles:

1. Provisions related to
rotation of Directors and
quorum for meetings of
Board of Directors

2. a. Authorising the Board to
borrow on behalf of the
Company for amounts
exceeding the paid-up
capital and free reserves
of the Company, subject
to approval by the
shareholders at the General
Meeting ofthe Company;

b. Authorising the Board to
delegate the borrowing
powers otherwise than
on debentures or 1o a
committee of the Board or
any Director or Managing
Director;

All the resolutions set out in the Notices were passed by the shareholders. The Company did not have
any proposal to vote through postal ballot during the year under review.

No Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Members was held during the year 2011-12.

5. INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT / RE-APPOINTMENT AS
REQUIRED UNDER CLAUSE 49 VI (A) OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT

a. Re-appointment of Mr. Sudhir Ghate, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sudhir Ghate, Non-executive Director retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meseting
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

He is a commerce graduate by qualification and possesses an extensive experience in various
commercial and industrial matters. He also owns and manages a premier institution called “The
Academy” at Mangalore for over a decade. He is also a Director in M/s. Magnum Intergrafiks Private
Limited, M/s. Mangalore infotech Solutions Private Limited, Mfs. Trichur Heart Hospital Limited,
M/s. VRL Logistics Limited and M/s. Kanara Chamber of Commerce & Industry.
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b. Re-appointment of Mr. Ashit Shah, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Ashit Shah, Non-executive Director retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and
being eligible, offers himseif for re-appointment.

He is a practicing Chartered Accountant and proprietor of M/s. Ashit Shah & Co. He has effectively
handled cases relating to Direct Tax, Indirect Tax and Audit. He has also authored many books on
subjects related to his profession. He is also a Director in M/s. Pears Financial Services Pvt. Lid.

c. Resignation of Mr. V. S. Soma, Executive Director & Company Secretary

Mr. V. S. Soma resigned as Executive Director & Company Secretary of the Company with effect from
17" January, 2012. Upon his resignation as Company Secretary, the position of Compliance officer
also gets vacated.

6. INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF COMPANY SECRETARY APPOINTMENT AS REQUIRED UNDER
CLAUSE 47 (a) OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT

Resignation of Mr. V. S. Soma, Executive Director & Company Secretary

Mr. V. S. Soma resighed as Executive Director & Company Secretary ofthe Company with effect from
17" January, 2012,

Appointment of Ms. Sunipa Ghosh as Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

In view of the resignation of Mr. V. S. Soma as Executive Director & Company Secretary with effect
from 17" January, 2012, Ms. Sunipa Ghosh has been appointed as the Company Secretary of the
Company with effect from 17" January, 2012.

Ms. Sunipa Ghosh is further appointed as a Compliance officer of the Company as per the provisions
of Clause 47 (a) of the Listing Agreement. She will be responsible for monitoring the share transfer
process and report to the Company's Board at each meeting. The compliance officer will directly
fiaise with the authorities such as Securities and Exchange Board of India, Stock Exchanges,
Registrar of Companies, etc. and investors with respect to implementation of various clauses,
rules, regulations and other directives of such authorities and investor service and complaints of
related matter.

7. DISCLOSURES

a. Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions i.e. transactions of the
company of material nature, with its promoters, the directors or the management, their
subsidiaries or relatives etc. that may have potential conflict with the interest of the company
atlarge.

None of the transactions with any of the related parties were in conflict with the interest of
the Company. Details of such transactions are stated in Notes to Accounts that form part of the
Balance Sheet.

b. Details of non-compliance by the company, penalties, and strictures imposed on the
company by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any Statutory Authorities on any matter related to
capital markets during the last three years.

There were no instances of nlon—compliance of any matter related to the capital markets during the
lastthree years.

8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

Financial Results: The quarterly, half-yearly and annual results of the Company are published in
widely circulated newspapers viz. The Financial Express (a nafional daily}and Andhra Prabha
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(a regional daily). These are also submitted to the Stock Exchanges on which the company's shares
are listed in accordance with the Listing Agreement.

Annual Report: Annual Report of the Company containing, inter-alia, Audited Standalone Financial
Statements, Consolidated Financial Statements, Directors' Report, Report on Corporate
Governance, Auditors Report and other important information is circulated to the members and
others entitied thereto for each financial year. The Management Discussion and Analysis Report
forms part of the Annuai Report. .

9. E-GOVERNANCE:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has adopted a "Green Initiative in Corporate Governance” by
allowing paperless compliances by companies through electronic mode. In accordance with the
circulars issued by the Ministry, companies can send various documents and notices, including
annual report, to its shareholders through electronic mode to the registered e-mail addresses of
shareholders.

Accordingly the Company proposes to send documents like Shareholders Meeting Notice/ other
notices, audited financial statements, directors' report, auditors' report or any other document, to its
members in electronic form at the emall address provided by them and/or made available to the
Company by their Depositories. This will facilitate faster communication, reduction in paper
consumption and wiil also ensure avoidance of loss of documents in transit. Members who have not
yet registered their email ids (including those who wish to change their already registered email id)
may get the same registered/ updated either with their Depositories or by filling up the form aftached
to this Annual Report and sending to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

10. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION
1. Date, Time and Venue of AGM: Friday, 28" September, 2012 at 10 a.m.

Hotel Daspalla, Road No, 37, Jubilee Hills,
Hyderabad-500 033, Andhra Pradesh.

2. Financial Calendar 1% Aprit to 31% March

3. Board Meetings for Quarterly Results:
(tentative and subject to change)

» Quarter ending June 30, 2012 - On or before 15" August, 2012

+ Quarter ending September 30, 2012 - On or before 15" November, 2012
+ Quarter ending December 31, 2012 - On or befare 15" February, 2013

« Quarter ending March 31, 2013 - On or before 15" May, 2013

Annual General Meeting for the Financial - On or before 30" September 2013
Year ended March 31, 2013

4. Book Closure dates Tuesday, 25" September, 2012 to
Friday, 28" September, 2012
{both days inclusive)

5. Proposed date of Dividend Payment: The Dividend of Re. 1/- i.e 10% per Equity share of
Rs. 10/-, as recommended by the Board of Directors,
subject to confirmation by the shareholders at the
ensuing 19" Annual Genera! Meeting to be held on
Friday, 28" September, 2012, will be paid within
30 days of the said date:

(i) To those members who held shares in physical form
and whose names appear on the Company's Register
of Members as holders of Equity Shares on Monday,
24" September, 2012;
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6. Listing on the stock exchanges

7. Paymentoflistingfees

8. International Securities
Identification Number.

8. Corporate Identification Number
10. Stock Code:
BSE

HSE
CSE

11. Registered Office

12. Corporate Office

Exclusive e-mail ld for investors

13. Registrars and Share Transfer Agents

14. Share Transfer System

{ii) In respect of the shares held in dematerialized form,
to the beneficial owners of the shares at the close of
business hours on Monday, 24th September, 2012 as
per details furnished by Naticnal Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL)} and Central Depository Services
{india) Limited (CDSL).

The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE})
The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited (CSE)
The Hyderabad Stock Exchange Limited (HSE)

However, the equity shares of the Company are not
tradedin HSEand CSE. °

Annual listing fees have been paid as per the
requirements of Listing Agreement. The listing fees for
the year under review was not paid to Hyderabad
Stock Exchange, due to its derecognition by SEBI with
effectfrom 29" August, 2007.

INEB81A01015
L24110AP1993PLC0O16112
531541

AVN
11123

Survey No.18, Yawapur Village,
Sadasivpet, Medak Dist., A.P.
Tel : 9949828084,

Fax: 040-23404438

H. No.8-3-1010/32, Unit 401,

Vijaya Enclave, Beside Andhra Bank,
Srinagar Colony,

Hyderabad-500 073.

541/A, ARCH House,
Marol Maroshi Road,
Marol, Andheri (E)
Mumbai — 400 059.

cs_1@avonorganics.com

XL Softech Systems Limited,

3, Sagar Society, Road No. 2, Banjara Hills,
Hyderabad- 500 034.

Phone no. (040)23545913, 14, 15.

Shares sent for physical transfer or dematerialization
requests are generally registered and returned within a
period of 15 days from the date of receipt of completed
and validly executed documents.

Bad deliveries are prompily returned to Depository
Participants {DPs) underadvice to the shareholders.

' Avon Organics Limited
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Plant Locations

and liquidity:

. Stock Market data relating to shares listed

Address for Correspondence

Dematerialisation of shares

Cutstanding GDR/ADR/Warrants or any

Survey No.18, Yawapur Village,
Sadasivpeth, Medak Dist, A.P.

Plot No. E-2, Chincholi Industrial Area,
Solapur, Maharashtra.

Shareholder correspondence should be addressed to
the Company's R & T Agent or to the secretarial
department of the Company.

As on 31st March, 2012, 2,23,54,984 Equity shares
equivalent to 99.36 % of the paid up share capital
of the company are in dematerialized form. The
company's shares are currently traded in B group at
the Bombay Stock Exchange.,

As on date, the Company has not issued any of these
types of securities, convertible instruments,
conversion date and likely impact of Equity.

Monthly High and low quotations at the Bombay Stock Exchange for the year 2011-12

Month Bombay Stock Exchange (in Rs.)
High Low
April 2011 36.70 31.00 '
May 2011 39.10 . 31.10
June 2011 39.30 30.75
July 2011 33.85 29.60 r
August 2011 31.90 24.60
September 2011 27.40 23.65 l
October 2011 26.90 2410
November 2011 25.90 20.15
December 2011 33.00 18.40
January 2012 41.00 31.00
February 2012 37.95 - 32.95
March 2012 41.40 28.60

19" Annual Report 2011-12
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Chart showing comparison of Avon Share Price (closing-monthly) with BSE Sensex (closing-monthly):

Avon Share price vs. SENSEX
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20. Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2012
No. of Equity shares Shareholders _ ! Mo of Shares
" Number % of Holders Number % of shares
Upto 5000 4979 96.23 2552254 11.34
5001-10000 99 1.91 733188 3.26
10001-20000 39 0.75 535259 2.38
20001-30000 15 0.29 364673 1.62
30001-40000 12 0.23 417699 1.86
40001-50000 12 0.23 555817 2.47
50001-100000 10 0.19 686726 3.05
100001 and Above 8 0.15 16654384 74.02
Total 5174 100.00 22500000 100.00
21. Categories of shareholders as on 31st March, 2012
Categories ‘ No of % of No.of | % ofshares
shareholders | shareholders held
Resident Individuals 4851 95.69 6456808 28.70
NR!s, Flls, OCBs 33 0.64 318096 1.41
Bodies Corporate 178 3.44 1201242 5.34
Promoters, Directors, Associates 1 0.02 14309100 63.60
Mutual Funds, Banks, Fls 2 0.04 157600 0.70
Others 9 0.17 57154 0.25
Total 5174 100.00 [ 22500000 100.00
won Organics Limited 21

xe



REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE CF CONDUCT
To
The Shareholders,

| hereby declare that all the Board Members and the senior management personnel have affirmed
compliance with the code of conduct adopted by the company and have submitted declarations in this behalf
for the year ended 31st March, 2012,

Sd/-
Place : Mumbai Ajit Kamath
Date :30.05.2012 Chairman & Managing Director
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CERTIFICATE FROM CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

1, Ajit Kamath, Chairman & Managing Director of Avon Organics Limited, to the best of my knowledge and
belief, certify that:

a. | have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year under review and
certify that:

i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material facts or contain
statements that might be misleading.

ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the company's affairs and are in compliance
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b. To the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year
are fradulent, illegal or viclate of the company's code of conduct.

c. | am responsibie for establishing and maintaining internai controls for financing reporting and have
evaluated the effectiveness and disclosed to the auditors and audit committeg, the deficiencies in the
design and operation of such internal controls and the steps taken torectify these deficiencies.

d. |have indicated to the auditors and audit committee that -

i. there are na significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year.

ii. there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year and the same have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

i there are no frauds of which | was aware, that involves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the company’s internal control system.

Place : Mumbai Sd/-
Ajit Kamath
Date :30.05.2012 Chairman & Managing Director
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AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To
The Members of
AVON ORGANICS LIMITED

We have examined the compliance conditions of Corporate Governance by AVON ORGANICS LIMITED for
the year ended 31% March, 2012 as stipulated in Clause 49 ofthe Listing Agreement of the said Company with
Stock Exchanges in India.

The compliance of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Qur examination was
limited to the procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance
of the conditions of Corporate Governance. itis neither an auditnoran expression of opinion on the financial
statement of the Company.

In our opinion and the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Agreement
mentioned above.

We state that in respect of investor grievances received during the year ended 31*March, 2012, no investor
grievances are pending for a period more than one month against the Company as per the records
maintained by the Company and presented to the Investor Grievance Committee.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Mukesh Mehta & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Sd/-

Mukesh Mehta

Place: Mumbai Proprietor
Date: 30.05.2012 Membership No.100407

FRN:116309W

19" Annual Report 2011-12 24



AUDITORS' REPORT

To
The Members of AVON ORGANICS LIMITED,

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Avon Organics Limited, as at 31*March, 2012, and also the
Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow statement for the year ended on that date annexed thereto.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsikility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those
Standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material mis-statement. An audit includes examining, on test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As required by the Companies (Auditors Report Order 2003 issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956, we enclose in the Annexure a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

Further to our commenis in the Annexure referred to above, we report that:

(i) We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(i) In ouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company sofar as
appears from our examination of those books.

{illl The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash flow statement dealt with by this reportare in
agreement with the books of account.

(iv) In our opinion, the balance shest, profit and loss account and cash flow statement dealt with by this
report comply with the accounting standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of Section 211 of the
CompaniesAct, 1956.

(v) Onthe basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31*March 2012 and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the directors is disqualified as on 3
March, 2012 from being appointed as a director in terms of clause (9) of sub-section (1) of Section
274 of the Companies Act, 1956.

(vi} In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
said accounts give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner sa required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally acceptedin India:

(a) inthe case of the balance shest, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31*March 2012.
{b) in the case of the profitand loss account, of the profit for the year ended on that date and
(c) inthe case of the cash flow statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

For Mukesh Mehta & Associates
Chartered Accountants.

Sd/-

Mukesh Mehta

Proprietor

Place:Mumbai, Membership No.100407
Date: 30.05.2012 FRN:116309W
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i
ANNEXURE TO AUDIT REPORT REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 3 OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

1.1 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative detaifs and
situation of fixed assets on the basis of available information.

1.2 As explained to us, all the Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals, which in our opinicon, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its
assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

1.3 During the year, the company has not disposed of any substantial part of its fixed assets, affecting the

| going concern.

2.1 The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the management at reasonable intervals.
In our opinion, the frequency of verificationis reasonable. |

2.2 In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the procedures of physical
verification of inventories followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the
size of the company and the nature of its business.

2.3 On the basis of our examination of records of inventory, we are of the opinion that the company is
maintaining proper records of inventory. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification between the
physical stocks and the book stocks were not materiai.

3.1 The company had taken interest free unsecured loans from holding company covered in the register
maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

3.2 The loans taken by the company do not have any stipulation for payment of principle and interest; hence
noamounts outstanding as at the end of the year and is considered as over due.

3.3 The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans fo the companies covered in
the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

3.4 The company has given interest free loan to wholly owned subsidiary of the company. In respect of the
said loans, the maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year is Rs. 51,015/- and the year
end balanceis Rs. 51,015/-.

4 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are adequate
internal control procedures commensurate with the size of the company and the nature of its business,
forthe purchase of inventory, fixed assets and for the sale of goods. During the course of our audit, no
major weakness has been noticed in the internal control system and there is no continuing failure to
correct any major weakness in internal control.

5.1 Based on the audit procedures applied by us and according to the information and explanations
provided by the management, we are of the opinion that the transactions made in pursuance of
contracts or arrangements that need to be entered in the register maintained under section 301 of the
Act have been so entered.

5.2 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions made in
pursuance of contracts or arrangements, which needs to be entered in the registers maintained under
section 301 of the Act, have been so entered. Owing to the unique and specialized nature of the items
involved and in the absence of any comparable prices, we are unabie to comment as to whether the
transactions made in pursuance of such contracts or arrangements have been made at prevalent
market price at the relevant time.

6 Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence complying with the provisions of
Section 58Aand 58AA of the Companies Act, 1956 and the rules framed there underis not applicable.

7 In our opinion the company has an internal audit system commensurate with its size and nature of its
business.

8 The Central Government has prescribed maintenance of cost records under section 209(1)(d) of the
Companies Act, 1956 to the company and such accounts and records have been made and maintained
by the company.

9.1 According to the records of the company, the company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income tax, Sales-tax, Wealth-tax,
Customs duty, Excise-duty, Service tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities., and there are no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year
concerned for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

9.2 According to the records of the company, there are no dues of Sales tax, Income tax, Customs duty,
Wealth tax, Excise duty of Cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.
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The company has not incurred cash loss in the current year and immediately preceding previous year.
The company does not have any accumulated losses.

Based on our audit procedures and on the information and explanations given by the management, we
are of the opinion that the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institution or
bank as at the end of the financial year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not
granted any loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares and debentures and
other securities. Accordingly, the provisions of para 4(xii) of the CARO, 2003 are not applicable to the
company.

Based on our examination of documents and record, we are of the opinion that the company has not
granted any loans and advances on the basis of the security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and
the securities.

Based on our examination of the records and evaluation of the related internal control, we are of the
opinion that the company has not dealt or fraded in securities, debentures and other investments during
the year. The company's long-term investments in shares have been held by the Company in its own
name. The company has acquired the shares of its subsidiary company during the year.

According to the records of the company and information and expianations given to us, the company
has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions.

According to the records of the company and information and explanations given to us, during the year
the company has availed the term loans from Banks / Financial institution and have been applied for the
purpose for which they have been obtained.

Based on the audit procedures applied and according to the information and explanations furnished to
us, the funds raised on short term basis have not been used for long term investment and vice versa.

The company has not made any preferential allotment of shares / share warrants to parties and
companies covered in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations furnished to us and based on the records verified by us,
during the period covered by our audit report the company has not issued any long term debentures and
hence creation of securities for the same is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations furnished to us and based on the records verified by us,
the company has not raised any money through public issues during the period covered under audit and
hence disclosure by the management on the end usage of money raised by public issues and our
verification of the same is not applicable.

21 Based upon the audit procedures performed and information and explanations given by the
management, no material fraud on or by the company has been noticed or reported during the year.

For Mukesh Mehta & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Sd/-

Mukesh Mehta

Proprietor

Place: Mumbai Membership No.100407

Date: 30.05.2012 FRN:116309W
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BALANCE SHEET

{Amount in Rs.}

Farﬁeutars Lo

Note

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2012

© As at31:03.2012

" As at 31.03.2011

EQUITIES & LIABILITIES
Shareholders Fund
Share Capital

Reserves & Surplus

Share Application Money
pending zallotment

Non-Current Liabilities
Long Term Borrowing

Long Term Liability
Deferred tax liabilities (Net)

Current Liabilities
Short Term borrowings
Trade payables

Other current liabilities
Short-term provisions

TOTAL

ASSETS

Non Current Assets
Fixed Assets

Tangible Assets
Intangible Assets

Capital Work in Progress
Intangible Assets under
development

Non-Current Investment

Long Term Loans
and Advances

CURRENT ASSETS
Current Investments
Inventories

Trade Receivables

Cash & Cash equivalents
Short terms loans

and advances

Other Current Assets

TOTAL
Significant Accounting Policies
Notes on Financial statements

~N oo

23

225,000,000
_ 463,691.877

516,949,787
317,140,209
- 19,261,270

473,627,350
339,592,838
189,338,810

30,376,387

1,081,686,137
134,907,045

-
A S

443,465,311
655,127,269
78,717 441
44,148,934

109,233,120

658,691,877

853,351,266

1,032,938,386
2,574,979,529

1,136,593,182
107,643,256

51,15

1,330,892,076
_2,574,979,520)

225,000,000

389,186,737

| 692,635,775

194,856,415

14,064,610

478,541,607
316,561,070
142,428,292

46650246
2,499,924,752

1,100,885,463

493,258,396
633,892,680

24,936,164
131,530,286

115,367,492
2,499,924 ,752

614,186,737

901,556,800

984,181,215

1,100,885,463
3,256

51,015

1,396,985,019

The Schedules referred to above from an integral part of the Balance Sheet

As per our report of even date
for Mukesh Mehta & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-

Mukesh Mehta
Proprietor
Mem.No. 100407
FRN: 116309W

Filace
Dale

Mumbat
0052012

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/- Sd/-
Ajit Kamath Manoj Jai
Chairman & Managing Director Director
Sd/-
Sunipa Ghosh
Company Secretary

n
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2012

{Amount in Rs.}

Mem.No. 100407
FRN: 116300W

Place : Mumbai
Date : 30.05.2012

Sd/-

Sunipa Ghosh

Company Secretary

Avon Organics Limited

29

Particulars Noto | hsheis | stoszor
INCOME e
Revenue from Operation 16 1,670,333,802 1,621,207,304
Other Income 16 2,331,158 2,483,786
TOTAL 1,672,664,360 1,623,691,090
EXPENDITURE
Cost of Materials Consumed 17 851,477,366 1,063,885,917
(Increase)/Decrease in stocks 18 67,004,082 (59,330,450)
Power & Fuel 17,985,112 | 124,092,351
Payments & benefits to employees 19 130,536,953 103,214,670
Other Manufacturing Expenses 20 46,589,482 | 63,378,865
Administrative & Selling Expenses 21 41,502,804 | 33,886,931
Financial charges 22 195,431,786 134,793,950
Depreciation 108,609,112 ' 61,164,052
TOTAL 1,559,136,788 1,525,086,287
Profit/{loss) before tax 113,528,174 98,604,803
Less:Prior Period Expenses - -
Less : Provision for Taxation 22,200,000 20,000,000
Add:MAT credit {22,200,000} (20,000,000)
Less:Short Provision for Tax for earlier Years 7,676,311 -
Less:Deffered Tax 5,196,660 -
Profit/(loss) after tax 100,655,204 98,604,803
Significant Accounting Policies & 23
Notes to Accounts
COMPUTATION OF EARNING PER SHARE
a) Net profit / (loss) for the year (Rs.) 100,655,204 98,604,803
b) No. of shares outstanding during the year 22,500,000 : 22,500,000
¢) Basic and diluted EPS (Rs.) 44T : 4.38
d) Nominal Value of Share (Fully paid-up) Rs.16/- each Rs.10/- each
The Schedules referred to above from an integral part of the Profit & Loss Account
As per our report of even date Far and on behalf of the Board
for Mukesh Mehta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Sd/- Sd/- Sdr-
Mukesh Mehta Ajit Kamath Manoj Jain
Proprietor Chairman & Managing Director Director

|
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Notes on Financial Statements
.
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March 2012
{Amount in Rs.)
S particulars oo oo |Asat3103ze12 As at 31.63.2011
1 | SHARE CAPITAL 5 '
Authorised Share Capital: . e
25,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each | 250,000,000 250,000,000

(Previous year 25,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)

Issued, Subscribed and paid-up: :

22 500,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 225,000,000 225,000,000
{Previous year 225,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)
Number of Equity Shares held by each shareholder hoiding more than 5% shares in the company are as follows:
(Amount in Rs.)

| _ | -t Number of shares Number of shares|
Particulars as at 31st March, | % | a= at 31st March, : %
_ \ 2012 2011
Arch Pharmalabs Limited 14,369,106 63.60 © 14,308,100 63.60
{Amount in Rs.)
. 1
oe | Particulars As at 31.03.2012 | As at 31.03.2011
2 | RESERVES & SURPLUS
| State [nvestment Subsidy 2,000,000 2,000,000
Capital Reserve 7,000,880 7,000,000
Security Premium 295,851,460 295,851,400
General Reserve 130,000,000 130,000,000
Profit & Loss Account _
As per last balanca sheet (45,664,663} (118,032,497)
Add: Profit for the year 100,655,204 98,604,803
54,990,540 (19,427,694)
Less: Apportionments :
| Proposed Dividend on Equity 22,500,000 22,500,000
(Dividend per Share Re.1/)
(Previous year Re.1/-}
Less: Tax on Dividend 3,850,063 3,736,969
28,840 477 (45,664,663)
463,691,877 389,186,737

Dividend amount per equity share propesed to be distributed to Sharehalders Re.1/- per equity Share (P.Y. Re.1/- per share).
{(Amount in Rs.)

o | Particulars As at 31.03.2012 As at 31.03.2011
3 | LONG TERM BCRROWINGS : - -
Current | Non Current Current | Non Current
Secured
Term Loans From Banks 175,587,638 | 368,880.892 | 136,245,368 | 537,777,780
175,887,638 | 368,886,882 | 136,245,368 537,777,780
Unsecured
Deferred Sales Tax Loan from State Govts. | 13,482,172 i 148,0860.89 6,182,924 | 154,857,995

| 13452172 1 148,060,888 6,182,924 | 154,857,995
189,338,890 | 516,949,787 | 142,428,292 | 692,635,775
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Notes on Financial Statements

Term Loan-Maturity Profile {Amount in Rs.)
2012413 | 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 201617

Term Loan From Banks 175,887,638 | 168,888,892 80,000,000 | 80,000,000 | 40,000,000

Term Loans

The term loans from banks of Rs.5447.77 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 6740.23 Lakhs) are secured by way of first pari

passu charge on fixed assets, second pari passu charge on current assets, personal guarantee of promoter

directors and also by way of corporate guarantee.

Defered Sales Tax Loan Maturity Profile (Amount in Rs.)

201213 201314 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17
Defered Sales Tax Loan 13,452,172 | 20,384,136 18,871,986 | 22,748,858 18,805,245
Deferred Sales Tax Loan

The Company has been availing interest free Sales Tax deferment loan from States Government Authorities and
the balance Outstanding as on 31" March, 2012 was Rs. 1,615.13 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. 1.610.41 Lakhs)

(Amount in Rs.)

Sk | Particulars | Asat31.03.2012 | As at 31.03.2011
3A | LONG TERM LIABILITY
Unsecured
' From Body Corporates 317,140,209 194,856,415

| 317,140200 | 194,856,415
4 | SHORT TERM BORROWINGS '

Secured
Working capital loan From Banks 473,627,350 478,358,529
Vehicle loans under hire purchase - 183,078

473,627,350 | 478,541,607

Working Capital .

The working capital loans from the banks Rs..4736.27 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 4783.58 Lakhs) are secured by
first pari passu charge on the current assets, second pari passu charge on fixed assets and personal guarantee of
promoter directors of the company .

Vehicle Loans
The Vehicle loan Rs.NIL (previous year Rs.1.83 Lakhs) avaited under hire purchase are secured by way of
hypothecation of vehicles and also personal guarantee of some of the erstwhile Directors of the Company.

(Amount in Rs.)

- N t i
St | particutars As 2t 31,03.2012| As at 31.03.201

5 | TRADE PAYABLES ) '
Sundry Creditors 239 502,839 316,561,070
339,592,839 316,561,070

In the absence of necessary information with the company relating to information to the registration status of
suppliers under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, the information required under
the said Act could not be complied and disclosed. The company has not received information from vendors
regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises.
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Notes on Financial Statements

(Amount in Rs.)

% Particulars As at 31.03.2012 As at 31.83.2011
6 |OTHER CURRENT LIABTI]TIES o
Current Maturities of long term debt i
(Refere Note No.3) 175,387,638 136,245,368
Sales Tax Deferment Loan {Refere Note No.3) 13.452. 172 6,182,924
188,335,816 142,428,292
7 | SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS
Provision for Tax : - 20,413,277
Provision for Excise Duty 4,226,324 “
Proposed Dividend 22,500,800 22,500,000
Dividend Distribution Tax 3,650,063 3,736,969
306,376,387 46,650,246
9 | NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS
In Share of Subsidiary Company
Unquoted - Fully paid Up
3,120,100 Shares of SGD 1 Each in Regal Pharma Pte. Ltd. 167,643,256 3,256
(Previous year 100 shares of SGD 1 eachin
Regal Pharma Pte. Ltd.) 107,643,256 3,256
10 | LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Advances to Subsidiary 51,015 51,015
51,045 51,015
11 | INVENTORIES
Raw Materials 113,512,379 92,227,591
Stores, Consumables & Packing Material 64,571,572 16,878,210
Work-in-progress 218,877,883 209,298,505
Finished Goods 48,467,293 118,824,428
Material in transit 30,184 56,029,662
443 465,311 493,258,396
12 | TRADE RECEIVABLES
{Unsecured and Considered Good)
Qver six months 7,839,663 21,222,624
Others £48,087,60€ 612,670,056
865,127,269 633,892,680
13 | CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash in hand 122,089 1,060,319
Balance with Banks
In Current Accounts 52,333,461 1,781,974
In Deposits Accounts 26,261,892 22,093,871
{Pledged with bank as margin}
Depesits Accounts
Rs. 12646112/~ (P.Y. Rs.12317514/-) maturity
is more than 12 months.
78717441 24,936,164
14 | SHORT TERMS LOANS AND ADVANCES
{Unsecured and Considered Good)
Advance for Suppliers and expenses 17.813.120 81,075,645
Advances to employees 155,008 303,149
Other Advances 26180 806 50,151,493
44,148,934 131,530,286
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Notes on Financial Statements

(Amount in Rs.)

st |

Sale of Products
Other operating Revenue

Less: Excise duty

OTHER INCOME

N, i Particulars ~ | Asat31.03.2012 | As at 31.03.2014
15 | OTHER CURRENT ASSETS g
Deposits 16,077,862 11,799,862
Accrued Interest on Deposits - 83,513 1,033,203
Balance with Govt. Departments 68,089,043 66,862,911
Prepaid expenses 5,153,628 2,438,268
Income Tax 25,859,104 33,233,248
109,233,120 115,367,492
(Amount in Rs.)
8l . Year ended Year ended
No. Particulars 31.03.2012 31.03.2011
16 | REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

1,732,769,249 1,692,402,162

12,038,565 19,910,642
1,744,807,814 1,712,312,804
74,474,012 91,105,500

1,670,333,802 1,621,207,304

Interest Received 2,331,158 2,248,926
Misc. Income - 234,859
2,331,158 2,483,786
Broad Particulars of Sale of Products
APl/Intermediate 842,819,710 882,793,196
Contract Manufacturing /Custom Synthesis 787,244,009 710,120,949
Others 40,270,083 28,293,159
1,670,333,802 1,621,207,304
{Amount in Rs.)
SL P I
No.| Particulars Year ended 31.03.2012 Year ended 31.03.2011
17 | COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED 851,477,366 1,063,885,917
Amount % of Amount % of
Consimption Consumption
Imported 187,148,083 21.98% | 154,638,000 14.54%
Indigenous 664,329,303 T8.02°% | 009,247 917 85.46%
851,477,366 100% | 1,063,885,917 100%
Broad Catogary of Material Consumed
Chemicals and Solvents 851,477,368 1,063,885,917
18 | (INCREASE)/DECREASE IN STOCKS
Opening Stock
Work-in-progress 209,298,505 225,499,957
Finished Goods 118,824,428 | 328,122,934 43,292 527 | 268,792,484
Closing Stock
Work-in-progress 219,877,883 209,298,505
Finished Goods 45,467,293 | 265345176 | 118,824,428 | 328,122,934
Increase/Decrease in Excise duty on
Finished goods 4,228,324
67,004,082 (59,330,450)
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Notes on Financial Statements

(Amount in Rs.)

Sl AT Yoar ended I Year ended
No.| Earticiiars L L Uit 31.03.2012 | 31.03.2011
19 | PAYMENTS & BENEFITS TN TH=
TO EMPLOYEES e Ol
Salaries & Wages | 112,645,876 89,889,796
Staff Welfare Expenses 9,395,868 5,781,771
Contributions to Funds 7,498,400 6,283,104
Directors Remuneration - 986,815 1,260,000
130,536,953 103,214,670
20 | OTHER MANUFACTURING EXPENSES
Packing Material consumed 4,162,036 7,010,906
Stores and spares consumed 20,028,328 19,672,451
Repairs & Maintenance 8,385,306 4,826,156
Manufacturing Expenses 10,700,976 29,292 354
Insurance Charges 2,302,836 2,576,998
46,585,482 63,378,865

VALUE OF STORES, CHEMICALS AND PACKING MATERIALS CONSUMED

{Amount in Rs.)

| Yearended 31,03.2012 |  Year ended 31.03.2011
Particulars Amount | % of Amount % of
Consumption - | Consumption
Imported . - - - =
indigenous 24,190,364 100.00% 26,683,357 100.00%
24,190,364 100.00% 26,683,357 100.00%
8l Year ended Year ended
No. Particulars 31.03.2012 31.03.2011
21 | ADMINISTRATIVE AND
SELLING EXPENSES
Rent, Rates & Taxes 8,214,784 3,231,391
Printing & Stationary 1,887,778 2,199,049
Postage, Telegrams & Telephones 1,328,242 2,138,016
Professional Charges 6,529,702 5,357,980
Travelling & Conveyance 2,653,133 4,297,505
Auditors' Fees 150,000 150,000
Vehicle Maintainance 5,643,822 3,102,059
Vehicle Hire charges 3,144,566 3,621,214
General Expenses 5,984,497 1,668,280
Export Expenses 602,275 560,956
ECGC Premium 206,800 551,942
Discounts - 149,216
Outward Freight 6,962, 545 6,399,721
Sales Promotion & Advertisement 194,850 559,502
41,502,894 33,886,931
22 | INTEREST AND FINANCIAL CHARGES
Interest Paid 168,589,433 100,202,511
Other Financial Charges 26,842,382 34,591,439
185,431,756 134,793,950
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SCHEDULE 23
NOTES TOACCOUNTS

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to Accounts

|  Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

a) The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the
generally accepted accounting principles and the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 as
adopted consistently by the Company.

b) The Company follows mercantile system of accounting and recognizes all significant items of
income and expenditure on accrual basis.

c) Allincome & expenditure having material bearing on the financial statements are recognised on an
accrual basis.

d) Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in confirmity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make assumptions and estimates which it believes
are reasonable under the circumastances that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities on the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Difference between the
actual resuits and estimates are recognised in the yearin which the results are known /materialized.

] StatdmenféfSi‘gniﬁcéntAccounting Policies:

A FixedAssets:
All fixed assets are stated at Historical Cost less Depreciation except in the case of Land and Site
Development whereas it is stated at Cost Plus Development expenditure. The expenses incurred in
setting up the project are capitalised and apportioned to the assets procured for that project in
proportion o the value of each of the asset.

B Depreciation:

The depreciation on fixed assets has been provided on Written Down Value method for Fixed Assets in
Diketene Division and common assets at Corporate Office and on Straight Line Method for Assets in
Bio-Tech Division in accordance with the rates prescribed in Schedule X1V of the Companies Act,
1956.Depreciation is not provided on Land. Depreciation on assets acquired for the project are provided
on commercialisation and depreciation on other assets if put into use is provided accordingly. Further,
depreciation on additions during the year is provided on prorata basis as per Schedule-VI of the
CompaniesAct,1956.

C Employees' Benefits:
Coniribution to defined schemes such as Provident Fund, ESI are charged as incurred on accrual
basis. The premium paid to LIC Gratuity Fund as per section 4 of the Gratuity Act, 1972 has been
charged to Profit & Loss account.

D Foreign Currency Transactions:

" Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at spotrates {average rates.
. Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year end are restated at year end rates.
Non monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.
In respect of branches, which are integral foreign operations, all transactions are translated at rates
prevailihg on the date of transaction or that approximates the actual rate on the date of transaction.
Branch monetary assets and liabilities are restated at the year end rates.
e. Anyincome or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except in case of long term liabilities, where they
relate to acquisition of fixed assets, in which case they are adjusted to the carrying cost of such
assets.

cooTw
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
= —

£ inventories:

inventories are valued as under:

a. Raw Materials, Stores, Consumables, Packing materials and other materials: at cost on miaving
average basis

b. Workin processis carried at cost of input RM and estimated cost of manufacturing upto the stage of
completion.

c. Finished Goods: At realizable value or cost whichever is lower.

F Excise Duty, Service Tax and Education Cess:
Excise Duty Is accounted on the basis of payments made in respect of goods cleared. CENVAT, Service
Tax and Education Cess on capital goods, raw materials and services as the case may be are
accounted on receipt/ completion of contracts, job works etc.

G Revenue Recognition:
Revenue in respect of sales is recognised as and when goods are supplied and in respect of insurance
claims, interest etc., is recognised when it is reasonably certain that the uitimate collection will be made.

H R&D Expenditure:
Expenditure for capital items are debited to respective Fixed Assets and depreciation at applicable
rates. Revenue expenditure is charged to Profit & Loss Account.

| Deferred tax: A
Deferred Tax is accounted for by computing the tax effect of timing differences, which arise during the
the year and reversed in subsequent periods. Deferred Tax assets on accumulated losses and
unabsorbed depreciation are recognised only to the extent there is certainity of realisation of such asset
infuture, '

J  Earnings Per Share:
The basic and diluted Earnings Per Share is calculated by dividing the profit/{loss) after tax by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding.

K Impairmentof Assets:
At each Balance Sheet date, the carrying values of the assets are reviewed to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). Where there is an indication that there is a fikely impairment loss for a group of assets, the
company estimates the recoverable amount of the group of assets as a whole, to determine the value of
impairment.

L Investments:
Investments are stated at cost. The Company has acquired the shares of subsidiary company during
the year and the same is stated at cost.

M Borrowing Costs:
Bomrowing Costs attributable to acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset, till the period in which the asset is ready for use. Other
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred.

N Provisions and Contingent Assets :

Provisions are recognised only when there is a present obligation as a result of past events and when a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Contingent liability is disclosed for i)
possible obligations, which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the
company or i} present obligation arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
cannot be made. Contingent assests are not recognised in the financial statements since this may
resuftin the recognition ofincome that may may never be realised.
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NOTES TO ACCOUNT

(Amount in Rs.)

r 1. Contingent Liabilities not provided for :

| particutars e 201442 |- 209011

a.| Estimated Amount of Unexecuted Capital Contracts 22,238,000

b. | Letters of Credit 2,137,135 11,896,000

¢. | Bank Guarantees 3,360,000 3,000,000

d. | Others 2,938,000 2,938,000

2.Managerial Remuneration: {(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 261112 2010-11
Executive Director
Salary 996,815 1,260,000
Perguisites - -

3. Auditors Remuneration: {Amount in Rs.)
Particulars 2011-12 2010-14
Statutory Audit Fees 150,000 150,000
Tax Audit Fees 50,000 -
Certification and Consultancy Fees 50,000 . -

4. Foreign Currency / Exchange Transactions: (Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 201112 2040-11
A, Value of Imports

Raw Materials 124,864,459 155,308,000
B. Value of Exports - Direct 520,225,751 422,365,000
C. Expenditure in Foreign Currency (Rs.)

a. Foreign Travel . -

b. Other Services 140,000 704,000

geographical break up of sales is as under

5 Inview of brought forwared losses provision for Income Tax as per MAT provision u/s 115JB is made.

6 The Company is engaged solely in the business of 'Pharmaceuticals’. The entire operations are governed
by the same set of risks and returns and hence the same has been co
segment. This freatment is in accordance with the guiding principles enunciated in the Accounting
Standard 17 on 'Segment Reporting' as notified under the Companies Act, 1956. However the

nsidered as representing a single

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars

i} Domestic
i} Exports

201112

1,150,108,051
520,225,751

2010-11

1,198,842,304
422,365,000
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7. Pursuant ic AS-18 the names, relationships and particulars of transactions with related parties during the
year are as under:

A} Listof Related parties

SiNoj Particualrs - Relationship
1 Mr. Ajit Kamath Key Management Person
2 Mr. Manoj Jain Key Management Person
3 Mr. VS Soma Key Management Person
4 Arch Pharmalabs Ltd Holding Company
5 Regal Pharma Pte. Lid Subsidiary Company

B) The following transactions were carried with the related parties in the ordinary course of business

during the year

(Amount in Rs.)

SiNo.. Particulars Transaction 2011-12 2010-11

1 Arch Pharmalabs Ltd Purchase of fixed assets 203,091 4,998,786

2 Arch Pharmalabs Ltd Sales of fixed assets 270,760 555,340

3 Arch Pharmalabs Ltd Purchase 81,597,558 99,040,446

4 Arch Pharmalabs Ltd Saies 24,742,694 49,187,758

5 Arch Pharmalabs Lid interest Paid 17,537,077 9,728,239

6 Arch Pharmalabs Ltd Dividend 14,309,100 14,309,100

7 Arch Pharmalabs Lid Deposits Received 122,283,793 8,755,415

8 Regal Pharma Pte. Lid Loans & Advances 51,015 51,015

9 Mr. V.S8.Soma Services 996,815 1,260,000

10 | Regal Pharma Pte. Ltd Investment in Subsidiary 107,643,256 3,256
Balances as on31*March 2012

i Arch Pharmalabs Ltd Long Term Liability 317,140,209 194,856,415

2 Regal Pharma Pte. Ltd Loans & Advances 51,015 51,015

3 Regal Pharma Pte. Ltd Investment in Subsidiary 107,643,256 3,256

{Accounting Standard) Rules, 20086 are as under:

. The disclosure as per Accounting Standard (AS) 15 (Revised) “Employee Benefits” as notified by company

Defined Contribution Plan Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recognised as expense for the year

are as under: (Amount in Rs.
Defined Contribution Plan Ason31.83.2012
Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund 2,566,000
Employer's Contribution to Pension Scheme 2,988,000
Employer's Contribution to ESIC 1,036,000

Gratuity paid by the company is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation is determined based
on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, which recognizes each pericd of service as'
giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up

the final obligation..

. Assumptions

Particulars
DiscountRate
SalaryEscalation

Ason31.03.2042

8.00%
4,00%
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NOTES TO ACCOUNT:

(Amount in Rs.)

Il. Table showing changes in present value of obligation as on 31.03.2012

Particulars - - - Ason 31.03.2012
Present value of obligations as at beginning of year 6,389,287
Interest cost 511,143
Current service cost 1,110,861
Benefits paid {617,689}
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations 1,229,896
Present value of obligations as at end of year 8,623,498

lil. Table showing changes in the fair value of plan assets as on 31.03.2012

{Amount in Rs.)

Particutars _ As on 31.03.2012
Fair Value of plan assets at beginning of year 1,759,862
Expected return on plan assets 153,625 -
Contributions 1,126,776
Benefits paid (617,689)
Actuarial gain/{ loss) on plan assets NIL
Fair Value of plan assets at the end of year 2,422,574

IV. Table showing fair value of plan assets as on 31.03.2012

{Amount in Rs.]

Particulars - As on 31.03.2012
Fair Value of plan assets af beginning of year 1,759,862
Actual return on plan assets 153,625
Contributions 1,126,776
Benefits paid (617,689)

Fair Value of plan assets at the end of year

Funded status

Excess of Actual over estimated return on plan assets

(Actual Rate of return = Estimated rate of return as ARD falls on 31" March)

2,422,574
{6,200,924)
NIL

V. Actuarial gain/loss recognised as on 31.03.2012

{Amount in Rs.|

Particulars

As on 31.03.2012

Actuarial {(gain)/loss on obligations

Actuarial {gain)/loss for the year-plan asssets
Actuarial {gain)/loss on obligations

Actuarial {(gain)/loss recognised in the year

(1,229,896)
NIL
1,229,896

1,229,896

VI. The amounts to be recognised in the balance sheet and statements of profit and loss

(Amount in Rs

Particulars

As on 31.03.2012

Present value of obligations as at the end of year
Fair Value of plan assets as at the end of the year
Funded status

Net assets/(liability} recognised in balance sheet

8,623,498
2,422,574
(6,200,924)

6,200,924

19" Annual Report 2011-12 40




NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

Vil. Expenses recognized in statement of profit and loss {Amount in Rs.}
Particilars 0 T T | Asonz1.052012
Current service cost 1,110,861
Interest cost 511,143
Expected return on plan assets (153,625)
Net Actuarial (gain) loss recognised in the year 1,229,896
Expenses recongnised in statement of profit and loss 2,698,275
(Previous year figures are not available and hence the same are not disclosed)

9. The disclosure as per Accounting Standard {AS) 22 "Taxes on Income"” as notified by Companies -
{Accounting Standard) Rules,2006 are as under:

Particulars : 201112 201011
Deferred Tax liability (Net) 5,196,660 NIL

10 The disclosure as per Accounting Standard (AS) 20 "Earnings per Share" as notified by Companies

(Accounting Standard) Rules,2008 are as under: ]
{(Amount in Rs.}

Particulars 201112 - 2010-11
Net profit after tax 108,331,514 98,604,803
Excess/(Short) provision for tax for earlier years 7,676,311 -
Net Profit attributable to Equity shareholders 100,655,204 98,604,803
Weighted Average number of equity shares

outstanding during the year 22500000 22500000
Basic and Diluted Earnings per share 4.47 4.38
Face Value per equity share 10 10

11 FINANCIAL AND DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS
Foreign currency exposure that are not hedged as on 31*March,2012 on account of:
(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 201112 2010-11
Trade Receivables 312,087,691 414,492,540
Borrowings NIL NIL
Trade Payble NIL NIL

12 Other Notes

(a) The Revised Schedule VI has become effective from 1% April, 2011 for the preparation of financial
statements. This has significantly impacted the disclosure and presentation made in the financial
statements. Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to
correspond with the current year's classification / disclosure.

(b) In the opinion of the Board of Directors, other current assets have a value on realisation in the ordinary
course ofthe Company's business, which is at least to the amount at which they are stated in the balance
sheet.

(c) During the year, the company has migrated to new ERP system i.e SAP, for which the Company has
changed the method of valuation of inventory from FIFO to weighted average. Had such change not
been made the value of the inventory as at the year end and the profit for the year would be lower by
Rs.13.88 Lakhs
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTE

{d) The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, Vide General Circular No. 2 and 3 dated 8"
February 2011 and 217 February 2011 respectively has granted a general exemption from compliance
with Section 212 of the companies Act 1956, subject to fulfilment of conditions stipulated in the circular.
The company has satisfied the conditions stipulated in the circular and hence is entitied to the

exemption.
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For Mukesh Mehta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Sd/- Sdi- Sd/-
Mukesh Mehta Ajit Kamath Manoj Jain
Proprietor Chairman & Managing Director Director
Membership No.
Mem. No. 100407 Sd/-

FRN: 116309W Sunipa Ghosh

Place: Mumbai Company Secretary

Date ;: 30.05.2012
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Amount in Rs.)

oo et p e T

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities T B | e .

Net Profit before tax and extracrdinary items N 113,528,174 | 88,604,803
Adjustments for L 2 & .- -—
Depreciation : 108,_{3“9_,*!12 61,164,052
(Profit) /Loss on Sale of Asset/Investment : . {140,900}
Interest 195,431.786 134,793,950
Operating Profits before Working Capital Changes 417,568,072 284,421,905
{Increase)}/ Decrease in inventories - 40,793,085 123,653,958
{(Increase)/ Decrease in Debtors © {21,234,589) {24,279 603}
{Increase)/Decrease in Loans & Advances 93,515,724 {25,107 432)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Current Liabilities 53,486,350 (103,107,288)
Increase /( Decrease) in Cash Credit Loan 14,731,179} 6.816,571
Cash Generated from Operations 588,398,462 272,297 900
Income Tax {12,872,971) -
Net Cash flow from operating Activities (A) 575,525,492 272,297,900
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Fixed Assets {144,587 591} {294 B25.695)
Sale of Fixed Assets 278,760 -
Investment in Subsidery {107,640,000) -
Sale of Investments - 157,042
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (B) {251,956,831) {294,838,654)
C.CashFlowfromFinancing Activities _

Change in long term borrowings {48,205,535) - 82,853,870
interest Paid {195.431,786) (134.793,850)
Payment of Dividend 122,500,000} (22,500,000}
Dividend Distribution Tax {3,650,063) (3,823,875)
Unsecured Loan - 3,360,873
Net Cash inflow from Financing Activities (C) {269,787,383) {74,923.082)
Net Increase in Cash Flow (A+B+C) 53,781,277 (97,463,836)
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalent 24,936,164 122,400,000
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalent 78,717,441 24,936,164

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

for Mukesh Mehta & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Sdi- Sd/- Sdi-
Mukesh Mehta Ajit Kamath Manoj Jain
Proprietor Chairman & Managing Director Director
Membership No.

Mem. No. 100407 Sdj-

FRN: 116309W Sunipa Ghosh

C Secreta
Place: Mumbai ompany Se i

Date ; 30.05.2012
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AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON CASH FLOW

To
The Board of Directors,
AVON ORGANICS LIMITED

We have examined the attached cash flow statements of M/s. AVON ORGANICS LIMITED for the year
ended 31" March, 2012. The statement has been prepared by the company in accordance with the
requirements of Clause 32 of the Listing Agreement and is based on and in agreement with the
comresponding Profit and Loss Account and Balance Sheet ofthe Company covered by our Report dated May
30, 2012 to the members of the Company.

For Mukesh Mehta & Associates
Chartered Accountants.

Sd/-

Mukesh Mehta
Proprietor

Membership No.100407
FRN:116309W

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30.05.2012
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Statement Pursuant to Section 212 of the Companies Act,1956
relating to Subsidiary Company
(Amount in Rs.)
Sr. | Name of the Subsidinry Regal Pharma PTE LTD
1 | The financial year for the subsidiary company ended on 31.03.2012 31.03.2011
2 i Shares of the subsidiary comapany held by holding
company as on above date
(i) Number 2808090 90
(i) Extent of holding 80% 90%
3 | Date from which it became a subsidiary 27.07.2010 27.07.2010
4 | The net aggregate amount of Profits/{Losses) of the
Subsidiary so far as they concern the member of the
Holding Company.
a) Dealt within the holding Company's accounts
i) for the financial year of the subsidiary 50,482,828 {183,934)
i) for the previous financial years of the subsidiary {183,934} N.A
since it became the holding Company's subsidiary '
b) Not dealt within the holding Company’s accounts
i) for the financial year of the subsidiary 5,609,203 {354)
ii} forthe previous financial years of the subsidiary {354) N.A
since it became the holding Company's subsidiary
5 |lIssued, Subscribed & Paid-up Capital 119,603,618 3,544
6 | Reserves & Surplus 55,906,633 (184,288)
7 | Total Assets 175,510,251 (180,744)
8 | Total Liabilities 175,510,251 {180,744)
9 | Investments NiL MIL
10 | Turnover 1.202,311.648 MIL
11 | Profit before Tax 63,177,206 (184,288)
12 | Provision for Taxation 7,085,175 NIL
13 | Profit after Tax 56,082,031 (184,288)
14 | Proposed Dividend Nit MIL
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AUDITOR’S REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

To
The Members of AVON ORGANICS LIMITED

1. We have audited the attached Consolidated Balance Sheet of AVON ORGANICS LIMITED (the
"company"} and its subsidiary Regal Pharma Pte. Ltd. (coliectively referred to as "the Group"} for the
year ended on 31" March,2012, the Consolidated profit and loss Account for the year ended on that
date annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of the company's
management and have been prepared by the management on basis of separate financial statements
and other financial information regarding components. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We did not audit the financial statements of subsidiary, M/s Regal Pharma Pte. Ltd. whose financial
statements reflect total assets of Rs. 98,88,05,049 for the period ended as on 31% March 2012, total
turnover of Rs. 1,20,23 11,648 and net cash flows amounting to Rs. 17,26,16,597 for the period
ended 31" March, 2012, These financial statements and other financial information have been
audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion is based solely on
the report of other auditors.

4. We report that the consclidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company's
management in accordance with the requirement of Accounting Standard (AS) 21, Consolidated
Financial Statement as notified by Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

5. Based on our audit as aforesaid, and on consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial
statements and on the other financial information of the components and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the attached consclidated
financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
acceptedin india:

* In the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the consclidated state of affairs of the
Group forthe year ended as on 31*March, 2012: and

¢ In the case of the Consolidated Profit and Loss account, of the Profit of Group for the
year ended on that date.

* In the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the Cash Flows of the Group for the
yearended on that date.

For Mukesh Mehta & Associates
Chartered Accountant

Sd/-

Mukesh Mehta

Proprietor

Place: Mumbai Membership No. 100407
Date: 30.05.2012 FRN: 116309wW
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2012

(Amount in Rs.)

.. Particulars Note As at 31.03.2012 As at 31.03.2011

EQUITIES & LIABILITIES '

Shareholders Fund . :

Share Capital 1 225 000,000 225,000,000

Reserves & Surplus 2 514,007,381 738,007,381 | 389,001,338 614,001 .338

Minority Interest 17,551,480

Share Application Money - - -

pending allotment

Non-Current Liabilities

tong Term Borrowing 3 516,949,787 692,635,775

Long Term Liability 3A 317,148,208 194,856,415

Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 19,261,270 853,351,266 14,064,610 901,556,800

Current Liabilities

Short Term borrowings 4 473,627,350 478,541,807

Trade payables S |1,145,751,447 316,695,742

Other current liabilities 6 189,339,810 142,428,292

Short-term provisions 7 37,#B1g§§_§ 1,846,180,160 46,650,246 984,315,887
' TOTAL 3,456,090,307 2,499,874,025

ASSETS

Non Current Assets

Fixed Assets 8

Tangibie Assets 1,004,686,137 1,100,885,463

intangible Assets ' - -

Capital Work in Progress 134,907,045 =

fntangible Assets under

development _ = 1,136,593,182 1,100,885,463

Non-Current Investment 9 - -

Long Term Loans and Advances | 10 - -

CURRENT ASSETS

Current Investments -

Inventories 11 443 465,314 493,258,396

Trade Receivables 12 1,470,482, 535 633,892,680

Cash & Cash equivalents 13 251,334,039 24,938,708

Short terms loans and advances| 14 44 843.793 131,530,286

Other Current Assets 15 109,371,447 2,319.497,125 | 115,367,492 1,398,988,563

TOTAL 3,456.090,307 2,499,874,025

Significant Accounting Policies 23

Notes on Financial statements

The Schedules referred to above from an integral part of the Balance Sheet -

As per our report of even date
For Mukesh Mehta & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-

Mukesh Mehta
Proprietor

Mem. No. 100407
FRN: 116309W

Place: Mumbai
Date : 30.05.2012

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/- Sd/-
Ajit Kamath Manoj Jain
Chairman & Managing Director Director
Sd/-
Sunipa Ghosh
Company Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2012

{Amount in Rs.)

s mplL by o - Yearended |  Year ended
o, AL Note | 21.03.2012 31.03.2011
INCOME e
Revenue from Qperation 16 | 2,872.645458 | 1.621,207304 "
Other Income 16 2,331,158 2.483,786.
TOTAL 2,874.976,608 1,623,601,080
EXPENDITURE -
Cost of Materials Consumed 17 1,994.003,650 1.083,885.917
{Increase)/Decrease in stocks 18 67,004,082 {59,330,450)
Power & Fuel 117,985,112 124,092 351
Payments & benefits to employees 19 130,536,953 133,214,670
Other Manufacturing Expenses 20 30,035,664 63,378,865
Administrative & Selling Expenses 21 44,301,099 34071218
Financial charges 22 205,795,556 134,795,415
Depreciation 108,609,112 61,164,052
TOTAL 2,698,271,228 | 1525272040
Profit/(loss) before tax 176,705,380 98 419,050
Less:Prior Period Expenses - -
Less : Provision for Taxation 29,285175 20,000,000
Add:MAT credit {22,200,000) (20,000,000}
Less:Short Provision for Tax for earlier Years T1.676,311 -
Less:Deffered Tax 5,196,660 -
Profit/{loss) after tax 156.747,234 98,418,050
Less:Minority Interest 5,591,128 {354}
Amount Availabie for Appropriations 151,156,106 98,419,404
Significant Accounting Policies &
Notes to Accounts
Significant Accounting Policies
Notes on Financial statements 23
COMPUTATION OF EARNING PER SHARE
a) Net profit / (loss) for the year (Rs.) 151,156,106 58,419,404
b) No. pf shares outstanding during the year 22,500,000 22 500.000
c) Basic and diluted EPS (Rs.) 447 4.38
d) Nominal Value of Share (Fully Paid-up) Rs.10/- each Rs. 10/~ sach
The Schedules referred to above from an integral part of the Profit And Loss Account

As per our report of even date
For Mukesh Mehta & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Place: Mumbai
Date : 30.05.2012

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Mukesh Mehta Ajit Kamath Manoj Jain
Proprietor Chairman & Managing Director Director
Mem. No. 100407 -

FRN: 116309W Sunipa Ghosh

Company Secretary
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SCHEDULES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March 2012

{Amount in Rs.)

As at 31.03.2011

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised Share Capital:

25,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
(Previous year 25,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)

Issued, Subscribed and paid-up:
22,500,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
(Previous year 225,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)

| As at31.03.2012

250,000,800

250,000,000

225,800,000

225,000,000

+

Number of Equity Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares in the company are as follows:

{Amount in Rs.)

! . Number of shares Number of shares|
Particulars as at 313t March, % as at 31st March, Yo
2012 2011
Arch Pharmalabs Limited 14,309,100 63.60 14,309,100 63.60
ﬁ:;‘ Particulars Az a1 31.03.2012 | As at 31.03.2011
2 | RESERVES & SURPLUS
State Investment Subsidy 2,000,000 2,000,000
Capital Reserve 7,800,000 7,000,000
Security Premium 285,851,400 295,851,400
General Reserve 130.000,000 130,000,000
Profit & Loss Account
As per last balance sheet {45.850.062) {118,032,497)
Add: Profitfor the year 151,156,106 98,419,404
105,308,044 (19,613,093)
Less: Apportionments
Proposed Dividend on Equity 22,500,000 22,500,000
(Dividend per Share Re.1/-)
(Previous year Re.1/-)
L.ess:Tax on Dividend 3,650,063 3,736,969
79,155,981 {45,850,062)
514,007,381 389,001,338

Dividend amount per equity share proposed to be distributed to Shareholders Re.1/- per Share (P.Y. Re.1/- per share).

(Amount in Rs.)

o1 Pparticulars As at 31.03.2012 As at 31.03.2011
3 | LONG TERMBORROWINGS
Current | Non Current Current |Non Current
Secured i
Term Loans From Banks 175,887,638 | 366,888,892 | 136,245,368 | 537,777,780
175,887,638 | 368,888,892 | 136,245,368 | 537,777,780
Unsecured
Deferred Sales Tax Loan from State Govis. | 13,452,172 | 148,060,895 6,182,924 | 154,857,995
13452172 | 148,060,895 | 6,152,924 | 154,857,995
189,339,810 | 516,949,787 | 142,428,297 | 692,635,775
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SCHEDULES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

| Term Loan-Maturity Profile {Amount in Rs.) |
201213 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 | |

| Term Loan from Banks 175,887,638 |168,888,892 80,000,000 | 80,000,000 40,000,000
Term Loans |

| The term loans from banks of Rs. 5447.77 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 6740.23 Lakhs) are secured by way of
first pari passu charge on fixed assets, second pari pasu charge on current assets, personal guarantee of |
| promater director and also by way of corporate guarantee. |

| Defered Sales Tax Loan Maturity Profile (Amount in Rs.) |

201213 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17
| Defered Sales Tax Loan 13,462,172 | 20,384,136 18,871,986 | 22,748,858 18,905,245 |

Deferred Safes Tax Loan |

The Company has been availing interest free Sales Tax deferment loan from State Government Authorities
| and the balance OQutstanding as on 31* March, 2012 was Rs. 1,615.13 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. 1,610.41 |
Lakhs)

(Amount in Rs.) |
‘ ne| Particutars As at 31.03.2012 | As ot 31.03.2011
| 3A| LONG TERMLIABILITY |

| Unsecured ; |

From Body Corporates 37,140 194,856,415
3?7,14&,% 194,856,415 [

|4 | SHORT TERM BORROWINGS |
| Secured

Working capital loan From Banks 473.627,350 478,358,529
Vehicle loans under hire purchase - 183,078 |
| 473,627,350 478,541,607 |

Working Capital
The working capital loans from the banks Rs.4736.27 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 4783.58 Lakhs) are |
secured by first pari passu charge on the current assets, second pari passu charge on fixed assets and

| personal guarantee of promoter directors of the company. ' |

| Vehicle Loans
The Vehicle loan Rs.NIL ( previous yearRs.1.83 Lakhs) availed under hire purchase are secured by way of |
| hypothecation of vehicles and also personal garantee of some ofthe erstwhile Directors of the Company. |

{Amount in Rs.)

| Particulars As at 31.03.2012 | Asat 31.03.2011 |

| 5 TRADE PAYABLES |
| Sundry Creditors | 1,145,751,447 316,695,742
1,145,751, 447 316,605,742 |

In the absence of hecessary information with the company relating to information to the registration status of
suppliers underthe Micro, Smali and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 20086, the information required

| under the said Act could not be complied and disclosed. The company has not received information from |

vendors regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medijum Enterprises.
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SCHEDULES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount in Rs.)

No,| Particulars As at 31.03.2012 | As at 31.03.2011
6 | OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current Maturities of long term debt (Refere Note No.3) 175,887,638 136,245,368
Sales Tax Deferment Loan (Refere Note No.3) 13,452,172 6,182,924
189,339,810 142,428,292
7 | SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS
Provision for Tax 7,085,175 20,413,277
Provision for Excise Duty 4,226,324 -
Proposed Dividend 22,500,000 22,500,000
Dividend Distribution Tax 3,650,063 3,736,969
37,461,562 46,650,246
9 | NON-CURRENTINVESTMENTS
Equity Shares -fully paid up- UnQuoted
10 | LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Advances to Subsidiary - -
11| INVENTORIES
Raw Materials 113,512,379 92,227,591
Stores, Consumables & Packing Material 64,577,572 16,878,210
Work-in-progress 219,877,883 209,298,505
Finished Goods 45,467,293 118,824,428
Material in transit 30,184 56,029,662
443,465,311 493,258,396
12| TRADE RECEIVABLES
(Unsecured and Considered Good)
Oversix months 7,039,663 21,222,624
Others 1,463,442 872 612,670,056
1,470,482,535 633,892,680
13| CASH& CASHEQUIVALENTS
Cashonhand 126,148 1,063,863
Balance with Banks :
-In CurrentAccounts 61,245,199 1,781,974
-In Deposits Accounts (Pledged with bank as margin) 189,962,692 22,093,871
Deposits Accounts
Rs. 12646112/~ (P.Y. Rs.12317514/-) maturity is more
| | than12months. 251,334,039 24,939,708

]
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SCHEDULES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

(Amount in Rs.)
o | Particulars As at 31.03.2012 | As at 31.03.2011
14 | SHORTTERMS LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Unsecured and Considered Good)
Advance for Suppliers and expenses 17,813,120 81,075,645
Advances to employees 155,009 303,149
Other Advances 26,875,664 50,151,493
44,843,793 131,530,286
15| OTHER CURRENTASSETS
Deposits 10,216,189 11,799,862
Accrued Interest on Deposits 53,513 1,033,203
Balance with Govt. Departments 68,089,013 66,862,911
Prepaid expenses 5,153,628 2,438,268
Income Tax 25,859,104 33,233,248
109,371,447 115,367,492
(Amount in Rs.)
Sl | Year ended Year ended
| Rgif i mAMICHISS 31.03.2012 31.03.2011
16 | REVENUE FRCM OPERATIONS
Sale of Products 2,935,080,897 1,692,402,162
Other operating Revenue 12,038,565 19,910,642
2,947,119,462 1,712,312,804
Less: Excise duty 74,474,012 91,105,500
2,872,645,450 1,621,207,304
OTHER INCOME :
Interest Received 2,331,158 2,248,926
Misc. Income - 234,859
2,331,158 2,483,786
Broad Particulars of Sale of Products
APl/Intermediate 2,045,131,358 882,793,196
Contract Manufacturing /Custom Synthesis 787,244,009 710,120,949
Others 40,270,083 28,293,159
2,872,645,450 1,621,207,304
(Amount in Rs.)
sl. Year ended Year ended
No| Particulars 31.03.2012 31.03.201
17| COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED 1,994,003,650 1,063,885,917
; % of % of
Amount Consump!ulon Amount Consumption
Imported 790,106,271 39.62%| 154,638,000 14.54%
Indigenous 1,203,897,379 60.38% | 909,247,917 85.46%
1,994,003,650 100% |1,063,885,917 100%
BroadCategoryofMaterialConsumed
Chemicals and Solvents 1,994,003,650 1,063,885,917
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SCHEDULES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount in Rs.)

:L Particulars Year ended 31.03.2012  Year ended 31.03,2011
18 | (INCREASE)/DECREASE IN STOCKS
Opening Stock
Work-in-progress 209,298,505 225,499 957
Finished Goods 118,824,428 328,122,934 | 43,292,527 | 268,792,484
Closing Stock fars
Work-in-progress 219,877,883 209,298,505
Finished Good 45,467,293 265,345,176 118,824 428 | 328,122,934
Increase/Decrease in Excise duty on
Finished goods 4,226,324 =
67,004,082 (59,330,450)
{(Amount in Rs.)
si - Yearended | Yearended
lia e e aulars 31032012 | 31.03.2011
19| PAYMENTS & BENEFITS TO EMPLOYEES
Salaries & Wages 112,645,870 89,889,796
Staff Welfare Expenses 9,395,868 5,781,771
Contributions to Funds 7,498,400 6,283,104
Director's Remuneration 996,815 1,260,000
130,536,953 | 103,214,670
20| OTHER MANUFACTURING EXPENSES
Packing Material consumed 4,162,036 | 7,010,906
Stores and spares consumed 20,028,328 19,672,451
Repairs & Maintenance 9,395,306 4,826,156
Manufacturing Expenses 10,700,976 29,292,354
Insurance Charges 2,302,836 2,576,998
Exchange Rate fluctuation {net) (16,553,818) -
30,035,664 63,378,865

VALUE OF STORES, CHEMICALS AND PACKING MATERIALS CONSUMED

{Amount in Rs.)

Year ended 31.03.2012 Year ended 31.03.2011

| Particulars Amount | % of Amount % of
Consumption Consumption

Imported - - - =
indigenous 24,190,364 100.00% 26,683,357 100.00%
24,190,364 100.00% 26,683,357 100.00%
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(Amount in Rs.)

. 3 R . ;
No,| Particuiars 10032092 | 3105200
21| ADMINISTRATIVE AND
SELLING EXPENSES
Rent, Rates & Taxes 6,675,322 | 3,231,391
Printing & Stationary 1,887,778 2,199,049
Postage, Telegrams & Telephones 1,352,625 2,138,016
Professional Charges 8,720,030 5,450,124
Travelling & Conveyance 2,698,065 4,297,505
Auditors' Fees 188,085 213,792
Vehicle Maintainance 5,643,822 | 3,102,059
Vehicle Hire charges 3,144,566 3,521,214
General Expenses 5,984,497 1,668,290
Export Expenses 602,275 560,956
ECGC Premium 206,900 551,942
Discounts ‘ 149,216
Incorporation fee - 28,352
Outward Freight 7,002,484 6,399,721
Sales Promotion & Advertisement 194,650 559,592
44,301,099 | 34,071,219
22| INTERESTAND FINANCIAL CHARGES

Interest Paid 168,589,433 | 100,202,511
Other Financial Charges 37,206,122 | 34,592,904
205,795,556 | 134,795,415
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SCHEDULE -23
NOTES TOACCOUNTS

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to Accounts

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

a) The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the
generally accepted accounting principles and the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 as
adopted consistently by the Company.

b) The Company follows mercantile system of accounting and recognizes all significant items of
income and expenditure on accrual basis.

c) Allincome & expenditure having material bearing on the financial statements are recognised on an
accrual basis.

d) Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in confirmity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make assumptions and estimates which it believes
are reasonable under the circumstances that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities on the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Difference between the
actual results and estimates are recognised in the year in which the results are known /materialized.

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies:

Fixed Assets:

All fixed assets are stated at Historical Cost less Depreciation except in the case of Land and Site
Development whereas it is stated at Cost Plus Development expenditure. The expenses incurred in
setting up the project are capitalised and apportioned to the assets procured for that project in
proportion to the value of each of the asset.

Depreciation:

The depreciation on fixed assets has been provided on Written Down Value method for Fixed Assets in
Diketene Division and common assets at Corporate Office and on Straight Line Method for Assets in
Bio-Tech Division in accordance with the rates prescribed in Schedule XIV of the Companies Act,
1956.Depreciation is not provided on Land. Depreciation on Assets acquired for the project are provided
on Commercialisation and depreciation on other assets if put into use is provided accordingly. Further,
depreciation on additions during the year is provided on prorata basis as per schedule-VI of the
CompaniesAct, 1956.

Employees’ Benefits:

Contribution to defined schemes such as Provident Fund, ESI are charged as incurred on accrual
basis. The premium paid to LIC Gratuity Fund as per section 4 of the Gratuity Act, 1972 has been
charged to Profit & Loss account.

Foreign Currency Transactions:

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at spot rates / average rates.
Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year end are restated at year end rates.
Non monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

In respect of branches, which are integral foreign operations, all transactions are translated at rates
prevailing on the date of transaction or that approximates the actual rate on the date of transaction.
Branch monetary assets and liabilities are restated at the year end rates.

e. Anyincome or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except in case of long term liabilities, where they
relate to acquisition of fixed assets, in which case they are adjusted to the carrying cost of such
assets.

o0 oo
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

Inventories
Inventories are valued as under:

a. Raw Materials, Stores, Consumables, Packing materials and other materials: at cost on Moving
average basis

b. Workin process is carried at cost of input RM and estimated cost of manufacturing upto the stage
of completion.

c. Finished Goods: at realizable value or cost whichever is lower.

Excise Duty, Service Tax and Education Cess:

Excise Duty is accounted on the basis of payments made in respect of goods cleared. CENVAT,
Service Tax and Education Cess on capital goods, raw materials and services as the case may be are
accounted on receipt/completion of contracts, job works etc.

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue in respect of sales is recognised as and when geods are supplied and in respect of insurance
claims, interest etc., is recognised when it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be
made.

R & D Expenditure:
Expenditure for capital items are debited to respective Fixed Assets and depreciation at applicable
rates. Revenue expenditure is charged to Profit & Loss Account.

Deferred tax:

Deferred Tax is accounted for by computing the tax effect of timing differences, which arise during the
the year and reversed in subsequent periods. Deferred Tax assets on accumulated losses and
unabsorbed depreciation are recognised only to the extent there is certainity of realisation of such
assetin future.

Earnings Per Share :
The basic and diluted Earnings Per Share is calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) after tax by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding.

Impairment of Assets :

At each Balance Sheet date, the carrying values of the assets are reviewed to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). Where there is an indication that there is a likely impairment loss for a group of assets, the
company estimates the recoverable amount of the group of assets as a whole, to determine the value
ofimpairment.

Investments:
Investments are stated at cost. The Company has acquired the shares of subsidiary company during
the year and the same is are stated at cost.

Borrowing Costs :

Borrowing Costs attributable to acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset, till the period in which the asset is ready for use. Other
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred.

Provisions and Contingent Assets :

Provisions are recognised only when there is a present obligation as a result of past events and when a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Contingent liability is disclosed for i)
possible obligations, which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the
company or i) present obligation arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
can not be made. Contingent assests are not recognised in the financial statements since this may
resultin the recognition of income that may may never be realised.
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements relate to AVON ORGANICS LIMITED ('the company') and its
subsidiary companies. The consclidated financial statements have been prepared on the following
basis:

a) The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies are combined on a line-by-
line basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses after fully eliminating intra-group balances and intra group transactions in accordance
with Accounting Standard (AS) - 21 - "Consolidated Financial Statements".

b) The difference between the cost of investment in the subsidiaries over the net assets at the time of
acquisition of shares in the subsidiaries is recognised in the financial statements as Goodwill or
Capital Reserve as the case may be.

c) The difference between the proceeds from disposal of investment in subsidiaries and the carrying
amountofits assets less liabilities as of the date of disposal is recognised in th consolidated
statement of Profit and Loss account being the profit or loss on disposal of investments in
subsidiary.

d) Minority interest's share of net profit of consolidated subsidiaries for the year is identified and
adjusted against the income of the group in order to arrive at the net income attributable to share
holders of the Company.

e) Minority interest's share of net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and presented in the
consolidated Balance Sheet separate from liabilities and the equity of the Company's share
holders.

f)  As far as possible, the consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting
policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumastances and are presented in the
same manner as the company's separate financial statements.

Investments other than in subsidiaries and associates have been accounted as per Accounting
Standard (AS)-13 of "Accounting for Investments".

The Subsidiary Companies considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements are :
Name of the Subsidiary Company Country of Incorporation Ownership Interest %
1 Regal Pharma Pte. Limited Singapore 90%

The audited financial statements of Foreign subsidiaries have been prepared in accordance with the
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles of its Country of Incorporation or International Financial
Reporting Standards. The differences in accounting policies of the company and its subsidiaries are not
material.

1. Contingent Liabilities not provided for : (Amount in Rs.)
Particulars 2011-12 2010-11
a.| Estimated Amount of Unexecuted Capital Contracts 22,238,000 -
b.| Letters of Credit 2,137,135 11,896,000
c. | Bank Guarantees 3,360,000 3,000,000
d.| Others 2,938,000 2,938,000

2. Managerial Remuneration: (Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 2011-12 2010-11

Executive Director
Salary 996,815 1,260,000

Perquisites - -
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3. Auditors Remuneration:

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 2011-12 2010-11
Statutory Audit Fees 188,085 213,792
Tax Audit Fees 50,000 -
Certification and Consultancy Fees 50,000 -

4. Foreign Currency / Exchange Transactions:

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 2011-12 201011
A.| Value of Imports
Raw Materials 124,864,459 155,308,000
B.| Value of Exports - Direct 1,722,537,399 422,365,000
C.| Expenditurein Foreign Currency (Rs.)
a. Foreign Travel - =
b. Other Services 140,000 704,000

In view of brought forwared losses provision for Income Tax as per MAT provision u/s 115J8 is made.

The Company is engaged solely in the business of 'Pharmaceuticals’. The entire operations are
governed by the same set of risks and returns and hence the same has been considered as
representing a single segment. This treatment is in accordance with the guiding principles
enunciated in the Accounting Standard 17 on 'Segment Reporting’ as notified under the Companies
Act, 1956. However the geographical break up of sales is as under

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 2011-12 2010-11
i) Domestic 1,150,108,051 1,198,842,304
ii) Exports 1,722,537,399 422,365,000
7. Pursuant to AS-18 the names, relationships and particulars of transactions with Related parties during
the year are as under:
A) List of Related parties:
3:; Particulars Relationship
1 Mr. Ajit Kamath Key Management Person
2 Mr. Manoj Jain Key Management Person
3 Mr.V S Soma Key Management Person
4 Arch Pharmalabs Ltd Holding Company

B) The following transactions were carried with the related parties in the ordinary course of
(Amount in Rs.)

business during the year

NS (l;_ - Particulars Details of Transaction 201112 2010-11
1 Arch Pharmalabs Ltd Purchase of fixed assets 203,091 4,998,786
2 Arch Pharmalabs Ltd Sale offixed assets 270,760 555,340
3 Arch Pharmalabs Ltd Purchase 81,597,558 99,040,446
4 Arch Pharmalabs Ltd Sales 24,742,694 49,187,758
5 Arch Pharmalabs Ltd Interest Paid 17,537,077 9,728,239
6 Arch Pharmalabs Ltd Dividend 14,309,100 14,309,100
7 Arch Pharmalabs Ltd Deposites Received 122,283,793 8,755,415
8 Mr. V.S.Soma Services 996,815 1,260,000
Balances as on 31*March 2012
Arch Pharmalabs Ltd Long Term Liability 317,140,209 | 194,856,415
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8. The disclosure as per Accounting Standard (AS) 15 (Revised) “Employee Benefits” as notified by
company (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 are as under:

Defined Contribution Plan Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recognised as expense for
the year are as under:
(Amount in Rs.)

Defined Contribution Plan As on 31.03.2012
Employer’s Contribution to Provident Fund 2,566,000
Employer's Contribution to Pension Scheme 2,988,000
Employer’s Contribution to ESIC 1,036,000

Gratuity paid by the company is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation is determined based on
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, which recognizes each period of service as giving
rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitiement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligation.

. Assumptions
(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As on 31.03.2012
Discount Rate 8.00%
Salary Escalation 4.00%

Il. Table showing changes in present value of obligation as on 31.03.2012
(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As on 31.03.2012
Present value of obligations as at beginning of year 6,389,287
Interest cost 511,143
Current service cost 1,110,861
Benefits paid (617,689)
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations 1,229,896
Present value of obligations as atend of year 8,623,498

lll. Table showing changes in the fair value of plan assets as on 31.03.2012
(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As on 31.03.2012
Fair Value of plan assets at beginning of year 1,759,862
Expected return on plan assets 153,625
Contributions 1,126,776
Benefits paid (617,689)
Actuarial gain/( loss)on plan assets NIL
FairValue of plan assets at the end of year 2,422,574
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IV. Table showing fair value of plan assets as on 31.03.2012
(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As on 31.03.2012

Fair Value of plan assets at beginning of year

Actual return on plan assets

Contributions

Benefits paid

Fair Value of plan assets at the end of year

Funded status

Excess of Actual over estimated return on plan assets
(Actual Rate of return = Estimated rate of return as
ARD falls on 31" March)

1,759,862
153,625
1,126,776
(617,689)
2,422,574
(6,200,924)
NIL

V. Actuarial gain/loss recognised as on 31.03.2012

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As on 31.03.2012
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations (1,229,896)
Actuarial (gain)/loss for the year-plan asssets NIL
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations 1,229,896
Actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in the year 1,229,896

VI. The amounts to be recognised in the balance sheet and statements of profit and loss

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As on 31.03.2012
Present value of obligations as atthe end of year 8,623,498
FairValue of plan assets as at the end of the year 2,422 574
Funded status (6,200,924)
Net assets/(liability) recognised in balance sheet 6,200,924

VII. Expenses recognized in statement of profit and loss
(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As on 31.03.2012
Current service cost 1,110,861
Interest cost 511,143
Expected return on plan assets (153,625)
NetActuarial (gain)/ loss recognised in the year 1,229,896
Expenses recongnised in statement of profit and loss 2,698,275

Previous year figures are not available and hence the same are not disclosed

The disclosure as per Accounting Standard (AS) 22 "Taxes on Income" as notified by Companies

(Accounting Standard) Rules,2006 are as under;

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars

201112

2010-11

Deferred Tax liability (Net)

5,196,660

NIL
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8. The disclosure as per Accounting Standard (AS) 15 (Revised) ‘Employee Benefits” as notified by
company (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 are as under-

Defined Contribution Plan Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recognised as expense for
the yearare as under:
(Amount in Rs.)

Defined Contribution Pian As on 31.03.2012
Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund 2,566,000
Employer’s Contribution to Pension Scheme 2,988,000
Employer’s Contribution to ESIC 1,036,000

Gratuity paid by the company is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation is determined based on
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, which recognizes each period of service as giving
rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitiement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligation.

l. Assumptions
(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As on 31.03.2012
Discount Rate 8.00%
Salary Escalation 4.00%

Il. Table showing changes in present value of obligation as on 31.03.2012
(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As on 31.03.2012
Presentvalue of obligations as at beginning of year 6,389,287
Interest cost 511,143
Current service cost 1,110,861
Benefits paid (617,689)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations 1,229,896
Present value of obligations as at end of year 8,623,498

lll. Table showing changes in the fair value of plan assets as on 31.03.2012
(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As on 31.03.2012
Fair Value of plan assets at beginning of year 1,759,862
Expected return on plan assets 153,625
Contributions 1,126,776
Benefits paid (617,689)
Actuarial gain/( loss) on plan assets NIL
Fair Value of plan assets at the end ofyear 2,422 574
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9.

IV. Table showing fair value of plan assets as on 31.03.2012

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As on 31.03.2012

Fair Value of plan assets at beginning of year 1,759,862
Actual return on plan assets 153,625
Contributions 1,126,776
Benefits paid (617,689)
Fair Value of plan assets at the end of year 2,422,574
Funded status (6,200,924)
Excess of Actual over estimated return on plan assets NIL
(Actual Rate of return = Estimated rate of return as

ARD falls on 31* March)

V. Actuarial gain/loss recognised as on 31.03.2012

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars | Ason31.03.2012
£
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations (1,229,896)
Actuarial (gain)/loss for the year-plan asssets NIL
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations 1,229,896
Actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in the year 1,229,896

V1. The amounts to be recognised in the balance sheet and statements of profit and loss

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As on 31.03.2012
Present value of obligations as at the end of yeai" 8,623,498
Fair Value of plan assets as at the end of the year 2,422 574
Funded status (6,200,924)
Net assets/(liability) recognised in balance sheet 6,200,924

VI, Expenses recognized in statement of profit and loss

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As on 31.03.2012
Current service cost 1,110,861
Interest cost 511,143
Expected return on plan assets (153,625)
NetActuarial (gain)/ loss recognised in the year 1,229,896
Expenses recongnised in statement of profit and loss 2,698,275
Previous yearfigures are not available and hence the same are not disclosed

The disclosure as per Accounting Standard (AS) 22 "Taxes on Income" as notified by Companies

(Accounting Standard) Rules,2006 are as under:

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars

2011-12

2010-11

Deferred Tax liability (Net)

5,196,660

NIL
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10. The disclosure as per Accounting Standard (AS) 20
(Accounting Standard) Rules,2006 are as under:

"Earnings per Share" as notified by Companies

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 201112 2010-11
Net profit after tax 168,832,417 98,419,404
Excess/(Short) provision for tax for earlier years 7,676,311 -
Net Profit attributable to Equity shareholders 151,156,106 98,419,404
Weighted Average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 22500000 22500000
Basicand Diluted Earnings per share 6.72 4.37
Face Value per equity share 10.00 10.00

11. FINANCIAL AND DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Foreign currency exposure that are not hedged as on 31st March,2012 on account of:

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars

201112 2010-11
Trade Receivables 1,127,442,958 | 414,492,540
Borrowings NIL NIL
Trade Payble 806,158,609 NIL

12. Other Notes
(@) The Revised Schedule VI has become effective from 1

correspond with the current year's classification / disclosure.

(b)
course of the Company’s business, which is
balance sheet.

(c)

Rs.13.88 Lakhs
(d)

exemption.

April, 2011 for the preparation of financial
statements. This has significantly impacted the disclosure and presentation made in the financial
statements. Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, other current assets have a value on realisation in the ordinary
at least to the amount at which they are stated in the

During the year, the company has migrated to new ERP system i.e SAP, for which the Company has
changed the method of valuation of inventory from FIFO to weighted average. Had such change not
been made the value of the inventory as at the year end and the profit for the year would be lower by

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, vide General Circular No. 2 and 3 dated 8th
February 2011 and 21st February 2011 respectively has granted a general exemption from compliance
with section 212 of the companies Act 1958, subject to fulfilment of conditions stipulated in the circular.
The company has satisfied the conditions stipulated in the circular and hence is entitled to the

]

As per our report of even date
For Mukesh Mehta & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Sd/-

Proprietor Sd/-
Membership No Ajit Kamath

Mem. No. 100407
FRN: 116309W

Place: Mumbai
Date : 30.05.2012

Chairman & Managing Director

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-

Manoj Jain
Director

Sd/-
Sunipa Ghosh

Company Secretary
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Amount in Rs.)

ek Year ended
Particulars 31.03.2012
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit before tax and extraordinary items 176,705,380
Adjustments for
Depreciation 108,609,112
(Profit) /Loss on Sale of Asset/Investment -
Interest 205,795,556
Operating Profits before Working Capital Changes 491,110,048
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories 49,793,085
(Increase) / Decrease in Debtors (836,589,856)
(Increase) / Decrease in Loans & Advances 92,682,538
Increase / (Decrease) in Current Liabilities 866,595,462
Increase /( Decrease) in Cash Credit Loan (4,731,179)
Cash Generated from Operations 658,360,098
Income Tax {19,958,146)
Net Cash flow from operating Activities (A) 638,901,952
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities _
Fixed Assets (144,587,531)
Sale of Fixed Assets 270,760
Investment in Subsidery -
Sale of Investments -
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (B) (144,316,831)
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Change in long term borrowings (48,205,535)
Proceed of issue of share from Minority 11,960,362
Interest Paid (205,795,556)
Payment of Dividend (22,500,000)
Dividend Distribution Tax (3,650,063)
Unsecured Loan Ny -
Net Cash inflow from Financing Activities (C) (268,190,791)
Net Increase in Cash Flow (A+B+C) 226,394,330
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalent 24,939,708
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalent 251,334,039

As per our report of even date
For Mukesh Mehta & Associates

Mem. No. 100407
FRN: 116309W

Place: Mumbai
Date : 30.05.2012

Sd/-
Sunipa Ghosh

For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Mukesh Mehta Ajit Kamath Manoj Jain
Proprietor Chairman & Managing Director Director

Company Secretary
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Dear Shareholder,

Sub: Green Initiative in Corporate Governance

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has adopted a "Green Initiative in Corporate Governance" by allowing
paperless compliances by companies through electronic mode. In accordance with the recent circular no.
17/2011 dated 21.04.2011 and circular no. 18/2011 dated 29.04.2011 issued by the Ministry, companies can
now send various notices and documents, including annual report, to its shareholders through electronic
mode to the registered e-mail addresses of shareholders.

Itis a welcome move for the society at large, as this will reduce paper consumption to a great extent and allow
shareholders to contribute towards a Greener Environment. This is a wonderful opportunity for every
shareholder of Avon Organics Limited to contribute to the ongoing global drive for conservation of natural
resources. '

We therefore invite all our shareholders to contribute to the cause by filling up the form given below and send
itback to the Registrars & Share Transfer Agents of the Company, XL Softech Systems Limited atthe

following address:

XL Softech Systems Limited

3, Sagar Society, Road No. 2,
Banjara Hills, Hyderabad - 500034.
Ph: 040-23545913

We intend to send Annual Reports to all shareholders of the Company by way of email from the next financial
year ending on 31.03.2013. However, please note that as a member of the Company you will be entitled to
receive all such communication in physical form, upon request.

Best Regards,

Ajit Kamath
Chairman & Managing Director

E-COMMUNICATION REGISTRATION FORM
(In terms of circular no. 17/2011 dated 21.04.2011 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs)

Registered Address:....................
E-mail 1D (IoDeregistorad) D ... .. uiiiiiiirieirt it ceeeeeeeseesis s eeeressssesre s s s beesssies et et et e e s e e e

I/we shareholder(s) of Avon Organics Limited agree to receive communication from the Company in
electronic mode.

Please register my above e-mail id in your records for sending communication through e-mail.

B | e N o e RN

Note : Shareholder(s) are requested to keep the Company informed as and when there is any change in the
e-mail address.
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AVON ORGANICS LIMITED
Regd Off: Survey No. 18, Yawapur Village, Sadasivpet Mandal, Medak District, A.P.
Corp Off: H. No.8-3-1010/32, Unit-No.401, Vijaya Enclave, Beside Andhra Bank,
Srinagar Colony, Hyderabad-500 073

PROXY FORM
REgd-FOlioNG s No.ofsharesheld............ccoooviiiiiiiiic e
A T B srmmnrnnniaad being a Member/Members of the above named
Company hereby appoint..........ccccooiiinn.n or failing him . R A A b s e
............................... (o) e . as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us on my/our

behalf at the 19th Annual General Meetmg of the Company to be held on Friday, 28" September, 2012, atthe
Hotel Daspalla, Road No. 37, Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad-500 033, Andhra Pradesh at 10 A.M.

Signed: AFFIX
15 PAISE
REVENUE
STAMP
Date:

Note: Proxy Form must reach the Company's Registered office not less than 48 (Forty Eight) hours before
the Meeting.

AVON ORGANICS LIMITED
Regd Off: Survey No. 18, Yawapur Village, Sadasivpet Mandal, Medak District, A.P.
Corp Off: H. No.8-3-1010/32, Unit-No.401, Vijaya Enclave, Beside Andhra Bank,
Srinagar Colony, Hyderabad-500 073

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Regd: Folio NG ..o No.of Sharesheld.........
(To be handed over at the entrance of the Meeting Venue.)

Name of the Proxy (IN BLOCK LETTERS) (To be filled in by the Proxy attending instead of the Member)

| hereby record my presence at the 19" Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Friday, 28" September,
2012, atthe Hotel Daspalla, Road No. 37, Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad-500 033, Andhra Pradesh at 10 A.M.

Member/Proxy Signature
Note:
1. Interested Joint Members may obtain Attendance slips from the Registered Office of the Company.
2. Member's/Joint Member's Proxies are required to bring the Attendance slips with them. Duplicate slips
will notbe issued at the venue.
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If Undelivered, please return to:

AVON ORGANICS LIMITED

(AN ARCH ENTERPRISE)

H. No.8-3-1010/32, Unit 401, Vijaya Enclave,
Beside Andhra Bank, Srinagar Colony,
Hyderabad-500 073.
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